05087307

HATE




STRATA BANK, A SUBSIDIARY OF SERVICE BANCORP, INC.

The team of experts at Strata have taken banking to a whole new level by turning hard facts, superiot knowledge of personal
finance, business and the market into customized financial solutions. Whether you’re buying a homne, investing for college,
planning for retirement, opening or expanding a business, or just finding easy 24-hour access to your money, the experts at

Strata Bank can help. Discover a bank with the trusted expertise you need and the attentive service you deserve.

Established in 1871, Strata Bank operates eight full-service branches and eleven ATMs in the towns of Bellingham, Franklin,
Hopkinton, Medfield, Medway, Milford and Millis, MA. In addition, Strata Bank serves the residents and staff of Forge Hill

Senior Living Community in Franklin.

i1 STRATA BANK ¢ MISSION STATEMENT

We are a dedicated team of trusted experts working collectively to provide our clients
I with the ultimate customer experience.
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@O—;)r each of the last five years, Strata Bank has experienced"do’uble digit growth in
assets, and I'm pleased to report that this year is no exception. As of the end of our
fiscal year on June 30, 2005, the company’s total assets reached a record $350.6
million, an increase of over $31 million from last year. The following report
highlights the recent successes of Service Bancorp Inc., and its subsidiary Strata
Bank.

The 1-495 corridor continues to grow and change. A major highway resurfacing
project has yielded better roadways, there’s a new bill on Beacon Hill that proposes to
bring regionalized transportation to surrounding communities, local businesses
continue to expand and thrive and real estate prices have skyrocketed. We hope that
our institution’s continued growth will help keep the area’s economic engine running
strong.

Our sales efforts and expanded commercial and residential lending groups have
increased the bank’s total gross loans by $39.7 million or 16.8%. Commercial loans,
which include commercial real estate, construction and commercial business loans,
increased $21.9 million or 26.0%; and the Strata Mortgage Center increased
residential real estate loans by $15.3 million or 11.7%. Through our promotional
campaigns, we were also able to increase home equity loans by $2.5 million or
12.7%.

We are fortunate to have a team of seasoned, dedicated and creative professionals
who understand that banking means much more than the balance in a customer’s
account. Our staff realizes that in order to be successful and competitive in today’s
marketplace, it's necessary to go beyond the traditional role of “banker” and become
our customer’s partner in business.

Keeping that partnership alive means never resting on our laurels. Identifying
customers’ needs, keeping abreast of the latest technology; delivering the ultimate
customer experience and developing new and innovative programs are the
foundations of our success.

Our “Kids Count” program is a terrific example. The first portion of the program was
launched last vear to get kids to think more about saving money than spending it.
Today, there are more than 1,500 children participating in the program.

To build on the enthusiasm for “Kids Count” and to support other community-based
education programs, we developed “The Kids Count Mini Grant Board”. The board
awards grants of up to $500 to community organizations that serve the needs of local
youths. In a unique twist, the board members consist of high school juniors and
seniors from surrounding towns who select the organizations that will receive grants.
The program gives students the opportunity to serve on an actual board and teaches
them the basics - from developing bylaws and mission statements to award selection
and financial responsibility. Recently, the board made its first award to an area skate
park and the ceremony was written up as a feature story in the local paper.

Another program that started last year and has been gaining momentum is the new
“Strata Neighbors Count” program. Under this new initiative, Strata’s 120 employees
are asked to make quarterly donations to area organizations that have identified
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critical needs. Last winter, over 80 coats were donated to a local shelter and earlier
this year, over 500 personal care items were delivered to two area shelters.

“Strata Neighbors Count” program fits nicely with the bank's Community
Commitment Program. As part of our strategic goals and objectives, employees

$350,602

15300,000 | : . : "
| $250.000 | R q{ donate some of their free time to local schools, charities and other local
: e - : organizations that need support. Last year Strata Bank's employees donated over
+ - {ls200000 | I 8 pp y A b ploy
$i56.000 | I 2,700 hours of volunteer time to over 30 organizations.

§100,000 The dedication and talent of our management and staff, combined with innovative
W $50,000 |

b R programs and our unwavering commitment to providing the ultimate customer
= o experience has yielded another banner year for Strata Bank and Service Bancorp,
Inc. Below are excerpts from some of the articles that have appeared on us over
the past year. We look forward to building on the trust our neighbors, business
partners and customers have placed in us to keep growing and remain the best
local community bank in Massachusetts!

Sincerely,

Sonel / Aol

Pamela J. Montpelier
President and CEO

2004-2005 News and Articles of Interest

July, 2004 — “Strata Bank Hits Its Stride” — Strata Bank featured in “Dossier” section.
Published in both Banker & Tradesman and Massachusetts Banker Magazine

“During Montpelier's four-year tenure as Strata Bank’s President and CEO, assets have
increased more than 40 percent, total loans 105 percent, deposits 30 percent, capital 85
percent, and annual net income nearly 100 percent. Meanwhile, the OTC stock price of
the bank’s holding company, Service Bancorp Inc., bas steadily climbed  from around $6
in 2000 to its current level of just over $26 per share.”
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August, 2004 — “Kids learn ‘saving’ graces - Strata Bank teaches Money Sense” feature
article published in Milford Daily News highlights Strata Bank’s Kids Count Program launch

“10-year old Daniel Kobutanycz was one of the many kids who set up an account
Yesterday during Kids Count Day at Strata Banks in Franklin, Bellingham and Millis. The
2-hour event, sponsored by Strata Bank and Garelick Farms, aimed to promote good
savings babits among kids,”

October, 2004 — “U.S. Banker Magazine” Faces of Change — 25 Most Powerful Women
in Banking”- Pamela Montpelier featured as #15 of U.S. Banker Magazine’s 25 Most
) S e Powerful Women in Banking (selected from over 5,000 candidates!)

— U Moo “With the aid of a banking pedigree, she helped build the little bank that could. . Pamela
) IR e o 1 Montpelier comes from a long line of New England bankers. . .”I practically grew up in
- T banking,” she says, noting that by the time she was named the first female president and
$200,000 | s [0 SO CEO of Strata Bank in 2000 at the age of 37, it became clear that family was more than
$150,000 | | it about bloodlines.”
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{100,000 November, 2004 — Strata Bank Introduces Online Mortgage Center

0,000 L .
‘ §50,0 New and existing customers can now research loan rates, learn about the bank’s various

sol o : home loan and refinance programs, and apply for a mortgage 24 hours a day, 7 days a
1 week by logging in to stratabank.com.. Applicants will receive decisions on their
application in a matter of hours.




“We wanted to make this process as easy as possible for busy people juggling the demands Stqckho]ders’ Equity
of work, home and family,” says Montpelier. “We also added a built-in feature where Dollars in Thousands, as of June 30
customers can start an application, save it, then return to complete it at a later time.”

November, 2004 — Strata Bank’s Medway Branch Provides New Atmosphere for Customers s26515

L spsq Suen
The construction is now complete on Strata Bank’s Medway branch. Now customers can

grab a cup of coffee at the new Internet café, catch up on the latest news, relax in the
lounge and bring in their spare coins to run through the new coin exchange machine.
“Our ultimate goal is to make Strata Bank a destination ratber than just another chore
that needs to be done,” explains Pamela Montpelier, President & CEO of Strata Bank.

§20,365

January, 2005 — “Chamber Honors Top Business Leader” — Pam Montpelier named '«
“Businessperson of the Year, 2004” by the United Chamber of Commerce (Milford Daily News) 4l | TR

“The United Chamber of Commerce named Pamela J. Montpelier, President and CEO of
Strata Bank, its “2004 Businessperson of the Year.” Montpelier received the award at the
Chamber’s 17th annual meeting and awards presentation luncheon earlier this montb at
Gillette Stadium in Foxboro.”

March, 2005 - Strata Bank Announces the Promotion of Amy Costello

“Pamela f. Montpefier, President and CEO of Strata Bank, today announced the recent Net Income

, e , , , Dollars in Thousands, as of June 30
promotion of Amy M. Costello to Executive Vice President of Retail Banking and
Operations.

I ber new role, Costello will assume the overall responsibitity of the Retarl Branches,
Business Services and Human Resources. She will also lead the Bank’s Strategic Team
and will facilitate monthly meetings of department beads.”

March, 2005 — Strata Bank Announces the Promotion of Paul Carey e | m,@o

“Paul bas been part of the Strata Bank team for over five years, belping both our | 51,400
commercial and residential lending teams achieve exceptional growth,” said Monipelier. $1,200
“Paul also played a vital role in establishing the Strata Morigage Center, and continues to $1000

set aggressive goals for loan production that contribute fo our overall financial success.” $800
$600

$400
$200

“As a member of the Senior Management Team, Carey will be instrumental in the
Strategic Planning process, and will make recommendations as part of the Asset/
Liability Committee. In his new role, be will also continue to develop and train staff in '
both the commercial and residential lending divisions.” o 0L 2000 2003 2008 300%

May, 2005 — “Strata Bank Employees’ Effort Helping Neighbors — story on Strata
Bank’s new “Neighbors Count Program” (Banker & Tradesman)

“Franklin-based Strata Bank bas seen success with a new volunieer effort launched by
its employees called “Strata Neighbors Count,” The program complements Strata Bank’s
existing ‘Communify Commitment’ program in which employees volunteer at local
organizations and charities in their neighborboods.”

Stock Price
June, 2005 — “Teens can make a difference on board” - article about Strata Bank’s ) As of June 30
new “Kids Count” board of directors (Milford Daily News)

“Bartt Pinchuck, associate director of the Franklin YMCA's Bernon Family Branch Extension and
Pamela J. Montpelier, President and CEO of Strata Bank, are seeking civic-minded high school
students to serve on the 2005-2006 Kids Count Mini-Grant Board.”

June, 2005 — Strata Bank Announces the Hiring of Carol Swartz

“Pamela ] Montpelier, President & CEO of Strata Bank, today announced the recent
appointment of Carol Swartz to the position of Senior Vice President and Director of
Marketing. Carol’s extensive knowledge in the areas of markeling, sales, training, and
business development has prepared ber for her new role with Strata Bank, where she will
oversee the marketing and fraining departments. Her background in event planning i 8 2001 2002 2003 2004
will prove invaluable as she helps coordinate the Bank’s successful Strata Club and '
Generations Gold programs, as well as otber special events and promotions.”




SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

For the Years Ended June 30,

(dollars in thousands)

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
$350,602 $318,673 $299,946 $277.077 $244,007
274,598 235,336 179,922 150,847 122,922
2,454 3,903 28,372 15,616 21,052
50,655 56,430 71,158 89,672 79,371
254,805 239,148 239,929 220,193 191,826
67,650 53,392 35,232 34,794 32,255
26,515 24,922 23,511 20,365 18,366
$17,194 $15,608 $15,482 $16,178 $15,646
5,924 4,972 5876 7,343 8,282
11,270 10,636 9,606 8,835 7,364
427 429 570 330 218
10,843 10,207 9,036 8,505 7,146
1,727 1,787 1,379 1,447 1,683
9,377 9,295 8,030 7,975 7433
3,193 2,699 2,385 1,977 1,396
1,076 852 758 676 438
$2,117 $1,847 $1,627 $1,301 $958
0.64% 0.61% 0.59% 0.50% 0.43%
8.12% 7.66% 7.47% 6.78% 5.69%
3.29% 3.45% 3.35% 3.24% 3.04%
3.62% 3.74% 3.69% 3.67% 3.57%
72.15% 74.82% 73.10% 77.56% 82.16%
0.03% 0.00% 0.10% 0.24% 0.06%
0.90% 0.90% 0.96% 0.83% 0.79%
7.56% 7.82% 7.84% 7.35% 7.52%
7.89% 7.96% 7.83% 7.44% 7.57%
$16.38 $15.26 $14.66 $12.75 $11.63

!’ Net interest income divided by average interest-earning assets.
# Non-interest expense divided by the sum of net interest income and non-interest income,




SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549
FORM 10-KSB
(Mark One)

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005

(| TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to
Commission File Number: 0-24935

SERVICE BANCORP, INC.
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Check whether the issuer (1) filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities
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Act).
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Exchange Act. As of September 9, 2005, there were issued and outstanding 1,634,385 shares of the issuer’s
common stock, par value $0.01 per share.
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PART1

ITEM 1. Description of Business.
Service Bancorp, Inc.

Service Bancorp, Inc. (the “Company”) was organized as a Massachusetts corporation in 1998 at the
direction of the Board of Directors of Strata Bank (the “Bank”) and the Board of Trustees of Service Bancorp,
MHC (the “Mutual Company”) for the purpose of acting as the holding company of the Bank. The Company’s
assets consist primarily of the outstanding capital stock of the Bank and interest-bearing deposits of $3.1 million,
representing the proceeds from the issuance by the Company of $3.0 million in subordinated debt issued during
fiscal year 2004 and the remaining net proceeds from the Company’s stock offering completed in 1998. The
Company’s assets also include the outstanding common stock of Service Capital Trust I (“Trust I”’), a wholly-
owned subsidiary formed in 2004 for the purpose of issuing trust preferred securities and investing the proceeds
in subordinated debt issued by the Company. At June 30, 2005, 907,694 shares of the Company’s common stock,
par value $0.01 per share, were held by the Mutual Company and 726,691 shares of common stock were held by
others. The Company’s principal business is overseeing and directing the business of the Bank and investing the
net stock offering proceeds retained by it.

In this document, the Company is being discussed on a consolidated basis with its wholly-owned subsidiary,
the Bank. References to the Company may signify the Bank, depending on the context of the reference. The
Company’s investment in Trust I is accounted for using the equity method.

At June 30, 2005, the Company had total assets of $350.6 million, total deposits of $254.8 million and total
equity of $26.5 million.

The Company’s office is located at 81 Main Street, Medway, Massachusetts 02053. Its telephone number is
1-800-339-4346.

Strata Bank

The Bank was organized in 1871 as a Massachusetts-chartered mutual savings bank and was reorganized
into the stock form of ownership in 1997 as part of the Bank’s original mutual holding company reorganization.
No common stock was offered for sale to depositors or other persons at the time of the reorganization. The
Bank’s deposits are insured by the Bank Insurance Fund, as administered by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (“FDIC™), up to the maximum amount permitted by law, and by the Massachusetts Depositors
Insurance Fund in excess of the maximum FDIC insurance. The Bank is a community-oriented savings bank
engaged primarily in the business of offering FDIC-insured deposits to customers through its branch offices and
using those deposits, together with funds generated from operations and borrowings, to make one- to four-family
residential mortgage loans, commercial real estate loans, commercial business loans, construction loans and
consumer loans, and to invest in mortgage-backed and other securities.

The Bank has two wholly-owned subsidiaries, Medway Security Corporation and Franklin Village Security
Corporation. Both subsidiaries are Massachusetts securities corporations, which were formed to hold investment
securities.

The Bank’s main office is located at 81 Main Street, Medway, Massachusetts 02053. Its telephone number
is 1-800-339-4346.

Service Bancorp, MHC

The Mutual Company was formed in 1997 as part of the Bank’s conversion from mutual to stock form. The
Mutual Company is a Massachusetts-chartered mutual holding company with the powers set forth in its Charter
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and By-laws and under Massachusetts law. As of June 30, 2003, the Mutual Company owns 55.5% of the voting
stock of the Company. The Board of Trustees of the Mutual Company directs the voting of the shares of the
Company’s common stock held by the Mutual Company. The Mutual Company is subject to regulation and
supervision by the Federal Reserve Bank (“FRB”) and the Massachusetts Division of Banks (the “Division”).
The Mutual Company does not engage in any business activity other than to hold the Company’s common stock
and to invest any liquid assets of the Mutual Company.

The Mutual Company’s offices are located at 81 Main Street, Medway, Massachusetts 02053, and its
telephone number is 1-800-339-4346.

Market Area

The Bank operates eight full-service banking offices in the Massachusetts towns of Medway, Franklin,
Medfield, Millis and Bellingham, all of which are located in Norfolk County, Milford, located in Worcester
County, and Hopkinton, located in Middlesex County. In addition, the Bank has a limited-service banking
location at a senior assisted living facility in Franklin. The Bank’s deposits are gathered from the general public
primarily in these towns and surrounding communities. The Bank’s lending activities are concentrated primarily
in these counties and nearby surrounding markets in the greater Boston metropolitan area. Consistent with large
metropolitan areas in general, the economy in the Bank’s market area is based on a mixture of service,
manufacturing, wholesale/retail trade, and state and local government. Maintaining operations in a large
metropolitan area serves as a benefit to the Bank in periods of economic growth, while at the same time fosters
significant competition for the financial services provided by the Bank. Future growth opportunities for the Bank
depend in part on national economic factors, the future growth in the Bank’s market area, and the intensity of the
competitive environment for financial institutions.

Norfolk County has experienced a significant population growth, with the county showing a higher growth
rate than the Commonwealth of Massachusetts as a whole. Population growth has been supported by the outward
expansion of the greater Boston metropolitan area, with Norfolk County’s proximity to Boston and more
affordable housing attracting individuals wishing to maintain jobs in greater Boston. Within Norfolk County, the
town of Franklin in particular has experienced considerable growth in population and employment in recent years
and is one of the fastest growing towns in Massachusetts. The increased demand for housing resulting from this
growth has had a positive effect on real estate values and on loan demand in the area in recent years.

Competition

The Bank faces significant competition both in making loans and in attracting deposits. The Bank’s service
area in Norfolk, Worcester and Middlesex Counties has a high density of financial institutions, many of which
are branches of significantly larger institutions that have greater financial resources than the Bank, and all of
which are competitors of the Bank to varying degrees. The Bank’s competition for loans comes principally from
commercial banks, savings banks, savings and loan associations, mortgage banking companies, credit unions,
insurance companies and other financial service companies. Its most direct competition for deposits has
historically come from commercial banks, savings banks, savings and loan associations and credit unions. The
Bank faces additional competition for deposits from non-depository competitors, such as the mutual fund
industry, securities and brokerage firms and insurance companies.

Lending Activities

Loan Portfolio Composition. The types of loans that the Bank may originate are subject to federal and
state laws and regulations. Interest rates charged by the Bank on loans are affected primarily by the demand for
such loans, the supply of money available for lending purposes and the rates offered by competitors. These
factors are, in turn, affected by national, regional and local economic conditions, the levels of federal government
spending and revenue, monetary policies of the Federal Reserve Board, and tax policies.
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The Bank’s loan portfolio consists primarily of first mortgage loans secured by one- to four-family
residential real estate and commercial real estate located in the Bank’s primary lending area. The Bank also
provides financing for construction projects, home equity and second mortgage loans and other consumer loans,
and commercial business loans.

Loan Originations. Substantially all of the Bank’s consumer and commercial loan origination activity is
conducted by loan officers through the Bank’s branch network and through the Bank’s commercial lending
division. The Bank relies on referrals from existing customers, attorneys, accountants and real estate
professionals to generate business within its lending area. Existing borrowers are an important source of business
since many of its commercial real estate and commercial business loan customers have more than one loan
outstanding with the Bank. Construction loans are generated primarily from builders who have an established
relationship with the Bank. Consumer loans are largely generated through existing customers and walk-in
customers. Loan generation is further supported by advertising and networks built through the community
activities of Bank employees.

The Bank’s ability to originate residential real estate loans depends on the strength of the economy, trends in
interest rates, customer demands and competition. Residential real estate loans are originated through the
residential mortgage division of the Bank, the Strata Mortgage Center. During the first half of fiscal year 2004,
the Bank also had a contractual arrangement with Marathon Mortgage Company (“Marathon”), an independent
mortgage loan origination company, which supplemented the Bank’s residential mortgage loan origination
business. By December 31, 2003, however, the Bank had added to its staffing level at Strata Mortgage Center to
be able to service all of the Bank’s residential loan customers. As a result, the additional loan origination services
provided by Marathon were no longer required and the contractual agreement with Marathon was terminated.
The Bank may, as it has done in the past, continue to buy residential loans directly from Marathon or other third-
party residential mortgage originators.

Loan Sales and Servicing. While the Bank has not originated for sale large commercial real estate and
commercial business loans, the Bank may originate such loans for sale in the future to accommodate customers
seeking larger loans without assuming credit risks that exceed policy guidelines. In addition, one- to four-family
residential loans are generally underwritten to conform to secondary market guidelines. The Bank sold $5.3
million of residential real estate loans, servicing retained, in the secondary market during the year ended June 30,
2003, and $9.5 million during the year ended June 30, 2004.

Loan Purchases. To supplement originations of one- to four-family residential mortgage loans, the Bank
has purchased fixed and adjustable-rate one- to four-family mortgage loans secured by residential properties in
the New England area originated by other New England-based financial institutions and mortgage companies. All
purchased loans are priced at market rates and must meet the underwriting standards applied to loans originated
by the Bank. Such loan purchases totaled $200,000 and $22.5 million for the years ended June 30, 2005 and
2004, respectively. The Bank has purchased only whole loans.

One- to Four-Family Mortgage Lending. The Bank currently offers both fixed-rate and adjustable-rate
mortgage loans secured by one- to four-family residences located in the Bank’s primary lending area, with
maturities ranging from fifteen to forty years. One- to four-family mortgage loan customers are obtained through
advertisements, referrals from personnel at the Bank’s eight full-service operating offices and through the
originators at Strata Mortgage Center. At June 30, 2005, the Bank’s one- to four-family mortgage loans totaled
$143.0 million, or 51.8% of gross loans.

The Bank currently offers the following adjustable-rate mortgage loan programs: a one-year adjustable-rate
loan that reprices annually and a three-year adjustable-rate loan that reprices every third year. The Bank also
offers, “5-17, *7-17, and “10-1" loans where the interest rate is fixed for the first five, seven and ten years,
respectively, and is adjusted on an annual basis thereafter. The interest rates on the adjustable-rate loans are
indexed to the comparable-term U.S. Treasury securities rate, with the initial rate of interest being dependent
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upon the length of the repricing term (i.e. a higher rate is charged for loans with an initial three-year repricing
term as compared to a one-year repricing term). The one-year and three-year adjustable-rate loans and the 5-1, .
7-1 and 10-1 adjustable-rate loans are subject to interest rate caps of 2% for each adjustment period up to a
maximum of 6% over the life of the loans.

The volume and type of adjustable-rate loans originated by the Bank are affected by market factors such as
interest rates, consumer preferences and the availability of funds. While the origination of adjustable-rate loans
helps reduce the Bank’s exposure to increases in interest rates, credit risk can increase if borrowers are unable to
make the larger payments that result from upward interest rate adjustments. Periodic and lifetime caps on interest
rate increases help to reduce the credit risk associated with adjustable-rate loans but also affect the Bank’s
sensitivity to interest rate risk.

One- to four-family residential mortgage loans are generally underwritten in accordance with the Federal
National Mortgage Association (“FNMA”) and the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Association (“FHLMC™)
guidelines, with some exceptions on adjustable-rate and fixed-rate loans originated for retention in the Bank’s
loan portfolio. Loans are originated in amounts up to 95% of the lower of the appraised value or the selling price
of the property securing the loan. The Bank offers a blended mortgage that enables borrowers to obtain a
conventional mortgage for up to 80% of the property’s appraised value with a second mortgage available at
elevated rates for up to 10% of the appraised value. Loans over 80% of appraised value are required to either
obtain a blended mortgage product or obtain outside private mortgage insurance.

Commercial Real Estate Mortgage Lending. Origination of loans secured by commercial real estate is the
Bank’s most significant area of lending activity after one- to four-family residential mortgage lending. The loans
are generally secured by office and manufacturing buildings, office warehouses, apartments and retail stores
primarily located in the Bank’s market area. At June 30, 2005, commercial real estate mortgage loans totaled
$68.2 million, or 24.7% of gross loans,

Pursuant to the Bank’s underwriting policies, a number of factors are considered before a commercial real
estate loan is made. The qualifications and financial condition of the borrower, including credit history,
profitability and expertise, as well as the value and condition of the underlying property, are evaluated. When
evaluating the qualifications of the borrower for a multi-family mortgage loan, the Bank considers the financial
resources of the borrower, the borrower’s experience in owning or managing similar property, and the borrower’s
payment history with the Bank and other financial institutions. Factors considered in evaluating the underlying
property include the net operating income of the mortgaged premises before debt service and depreciation, the

debt service coverage ratio (the ratio of net operating income to debt service) and the ratio of the loan amount to
the appraised value.

According to the Bank’s policy, multi-family mortgage loans may be made in an amount up to 85% of the
appraised value (as determined by the Bank or a qualified independent appraiser) or the sales price of the
underlying property, whichever is lower, provided the debt service coverage ratio is not less than 120%. The
appraisal process takes into consideration geographic location, comparable sales, vacancy rates, if applicable,
operating expenses and historic, current and projected economic conditions. Appraisals are obtained from
independent licensed and certified fee appraisers for ail loan requests over $250,000, as required under the
Bank’s commercial real estate policy.

Commercial real estate loans are offered both as adjustable-rate and fixed-rate loans. Typical terms for loans
provide for a five-year repricing term, with up to a 30-year amortization. The adjustable-rate is generally tied to
either the Prime Rate as published in the Wall Street Journal or the applicable U.S. Treasury security index. The
Bank from time to time will partially fund fixed-rate loans through fixed-rate borrowings from the Federal Home
Loan Bank of Boston (“FHLB”) obtained for periods that approximate the fixed-rate terms of the loans originated.

A number of the Bank’s commercial real estate borrowers have done business with the Bank for many years
and have more than one loan outstanding. The Bank generally originates commercial real estate loans of
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$250,000 to $1,500,000, a range the Bank views as being too small for larger commercial banks. The Bank will
consider all requests regardless of size. Should the terms of a request exceed the Bank’s legal lending limits, the
Bank will consider participating a portion of the relationship with another financial institution.

Loans secured by commercial real estate generally involve larger principal amounts and a greater degree of
risk than one- to four-family residential mortgage loans. Because payments of loans secured by commercial real
estate are often dependent on successtul operation or management of the properties, repayment of such loans
may, to a greater extent, be subject to adverse conditions in the real estate market or the economy.

The Bank intends to continue to emphasize its commercial real estate lending activities in its primary
lending area depending on the demand for such loans and trends in the real estate market and the economy.

Construction Lending. The Bank provides funding for construction projects involving residential
properties within its primary lending area. These loans may be for the construction of new properties or the
rehabilitation of existing properties. The Bank underwrites construction-permanent loans for owner-occupied
one- to four-family property according to its own internal guidelines for adjustable-rate and fixed-rate mortgages.
For this type of construction loan, the Bank will lend up to 90% of the lesser of appraised value upon completion
of construction or the cost of construction, provided private mortgage insurance coverage is obtained for any loan
with a loan-to-value or loan-to-cost ratio in excess of 80%. For loans on one- to four-family properties being
constructed for sale, the Bank lends up to 80% of the lesser of completed value or project cost on pre-sold
projects and up to 70% for speculative projects. Typically, loan proceeds are disbursed in increments as
construction progresses as determined by property inspections and title rundowns.

At June 30, 2005, construction loans totaled $16.3 million, or 5.9% of gross loans. Unfunded construction
loan commitments outstanding at June 30, 2005 amounted to $11.9 million.

Construction financing is generally considered to involve a higher degree of risk than long-term financing
on improved, occupied real estate. Risk of loss on a construction loan is largely dependent upon the accuracy of
the initial estimate of construction costs, the estimated time to sell or rent the completed property at an adequate
price or rate of occupancy, and market conditions. If the estimates and projections prove to be inaccurate, the
Bank may be confronted with a project which, upon completion, has a value that is insufficient to assure full loan
repayment.

Home Equity Lending. The Bank offers home equity lines of credit and fixed-term loans secured by one-
to four-family owner-occupied properties in its primary lending area. Loans are offered in amounts up to 80% of
the value of the property, less the first lien. Values are determined by an independent on-line valuation service or
by an appraisal on the property provided by a licensed appraisal firm approved by the Bank. Fixed-term home
equity loans are written at fixed rates and are amortized for terms of up to 15 years, while home equity lines of
credit are written with adjustable rates and may be extended for up to 20 years (with a 10- year draw period and a
10-year repayment period). At June 30, 2005, the Bank’s home equity and second mortgage loans totaled $21.8
million, or 7.9% of gross loans.

Commercial Loans. The Bank originates both secured and unsecured commercial business loans to
businesses located primarily in the Bank’s primary lending area. Commercial business loans are typically
originated as both fixed-rate loans and adjustable-rate loans set at a percentage above the Prime Rate as
published in the Wall Street Journal. Fixed-rate loans generally are originated for terms of seven years or less. At
June 30, 2005, commercial business loans totaled $25.6 million, or 9.3% of gross loans.

Consumer Loans. The Bank’s origination of consumer loans, other than home equity loans, has been fairly
limited. The consumer loan portfolio includes direct automobile loans and various other types of installment
loans, including loans secured by deposits, as well as a modest amount of revolving credit balances. Consumer
lending is expected to remain a limited part of the Bank’s overall lending program. At June 30, 2005, consumer
loans other than home equity and second mortgage loans totaled $1.2 million, or 0.4% of gross loans.
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Investment Securities Activities

The investment policy of the Bank is reviewed and approved by the Board of Directors on an annual basis.
The Bank views its investment portfolio as an alternative earning asset vehicle into which to deploy excess funds
as well as to assist in interest-rate risk management. Compliance with the Bank’s investment policy is the
responsibility of the President and Chief Financial Officer. Investment purchases are initiated in accordance with
specific guidelines and criteria specified in the investment policy. No sales of investment securities can be made
without the prior permission of the President. All investment transactions are reported to and reviewed by the
Board of Directors on 2 monthly basis.

The Bank’s current policy generally favors investment in U.S. Government and federal agency securities,
corporate debt obligations and corporate equities. The policy permits investment in mortgage-backed and
mortgage-related securities but does not allow the use of interest rate swaps, options and futures. The Bank’s
current investment strategy has emphasized the purchase of federal agency obligations and corporate debt
obligations, most of which mature within ten years, and federal agency mortgage-backed securities. Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 115 requires the Bank to designate its securities as held to
maturity, available for sale, or trading depending on the Bank’s ability to hold and intent regarding its
investments. The Bank does not currently maintain a trading portfolio of securities.

U.S. Government and Federal Agency Obligations. The federal agency securities portfolio consists
primarily of medium-term (maturities of three to ten years) securities. The Bank’s current investment strategy,
however, 1s to maintain investments in such instruments for liquidity purposes, as collateral for borrowings, and
for prepayment protection. Some of the Bank’s agency debentures have one-time call features following a
holding period of twelve months or more. The Bank generally does not purchase structured notes and there were
no structured notes in the Bank’s portfolio at June 30, 2005.

Mortgage-Backed Securities. Mortgage-backed securities are generally purchased by the Bank as a means
to deploy excess liquidity at more favorable yields than other investment alternatives. In addition, mortgage-
backed securities generate positive interest rate spreads with minimal administrative expense and lower the
Bank’s overall credit risk due to the guarantees on such securities provided by the Government National
Mortgage Association (“GNMA™), FNMA and FHLMC.

Mortgage-backed securities are created by pooling individual mortgages and bear an interest rate that is less
than the interest rate on the underlying mortgages. Mortgage-backed securities typically represent a participation
interest in a pool of single family or multi-family mortgages, although the Bank generally purchases only
mortgage-backed securities backed by single-family mortgage loans. The issuers of such securities (generally
federal agencies and U.S. Government sponsored enterprises, including FNMA, FHLMC and GNMA) pool and
resell the participation interests in the form of securities to investors and guarantee the payment of principal and
interest to these investors. Investments in mortgage-backed securities involve a risk that actual prepayments on
the underlying mortgage loans will be greater than estimated over the life of the security, which may require
adjustments to the amortization of any premium or accretion of any discount relating to such instruments, thereby
affecting the net yield on such securities. There is also reinvestment risk associated with the cash flows from
such securities or in the event such securities are redeemed by the issuer. Finally, the market value of such
securities may be adversely affected by changes in interest rates.

Corporate Obligations. The Bank’s policy generally requires that investment in corporate debt obligations
be limited to corporate bonds with an “A” rating or better by at least one nationally recognized rating service at
the time of purchase.

Marketable Equity Securities. The Bank’s marketable equity securities consist of investments in common
stocks. The Bank generally purchases marketable equity securities as growth and income investments in major
Standard & Poor’s 500 companies that can provide the opportunity for revenue that is taxed on a more favorable
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basis than operating income. There can be no assurance that investment in marketable equity securities will
achieve appreciation in value and, therefore, such investments involve higher risk.

Federal Home Loan Bank Stock. 'The Bank is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB™) of
Boston. As part of a borrowing arrangement with the FHLB, the Bank is required to invest in the stock of the
FHLB in an amount determined on the basis of the Bank’s residential mortgage loans and borrowings from the
FHLB. The stock is redeemable at par and earns dividends declared at the discretion of the FHLB.

Deposit Activities

The Bank offers a variety of deposit accounts with a range of interest rates and terms. The Bank’s deposit
accounts consist of non-interest-bearing checking accounts and interest-bearing NOW accounts, savings accounts
and money market deposit accounts (referred to in the aggregate as “transaction accounts”) and certificate of
deposit accounts. The Bank offers Individual Retirement Accounts (“IRAs”) and other qualified plan accounts.

The flow of deposits is influenced significantly by general economic conditions, changes in money market
rates, prevailing interest rates and the relative attractiveness of competing deposit and investment alternatives.
The Bank’s deposits are obtained predominantly from the communities surrounding its branch offices. The Bank
relies primarily on competitive pricing of its deposit products, customer service and long-standing relationships
with customers to attract and retain these deposits. In addition, the Bank has actively marketed its core deposit
products to elderly customers in the Bank’s market area through the organization of travel clubs designed to
promote savings by the Bank’s senior citizen customers. Finally, the Bank has emphasized the acquisition of
customers dissatisfied with the less personalized and more costly services provided by larger financial
institutions that often are the product of one or more mergers. However, market interest rates and rates offered by
competing financial institutions significantly affect the Bank’s ability to aitract and retain deposits. The Bank
uses traditional means of advertising its deposit products, including broadcast and print media, and generally
does not solicit deposits from outside its market area. The Bank does not use brokers to obtain deposits.

Financial Services Activities

The Financial Services Center at Strata Bank provides a wide variety of alternative investment and
insurance products. These non-deposit investment products are offered through the Bank’s alliance with Linsco/
Private Ledger (“LPL”). LPL is a registered broker/dealer and member NASD/SIPC. LPL is one of the nation’s
largest brokerages with investment professionals in locations across the country.

REGULATION
General

The Bank is a Massachusetts-chartered stock savings bank and its deposit accounts are insured up to
applicable limits by the Bank Insurance Fund (“BIF”) of the FDIC and by the Depositors Insurance Fund. The
Barnk is subject to extensive regulation by the Massachusetts Division of Banks (the “Division”) as its chartering
agency, and by the FDIC, as its deposit insurer. The Bank is required to file reports with, and is periodically
examined by, the FDIC and the Division concerning its activities and financial condition and must obtain
regulatory approvals prior to entering into certain transactions, including, but not limited to, mergers with or
acquisitions of other banks and savings institutions. The Bank is a member of the FHLB of Boston and is subject
to certain regulation by the Board of Governors of the FRB. As bank holding companies, the Mutual Company
and the Company are subject to regulation by the FRB and the Division and required to file reports with such
regulatory bodies. Any change in such regulations, whether by the Division, the FDIC, or the FRB could have a
material adverse impact on the Bank, the Company, or the Mutual Company. Certain of the regulatory
requirements applicable to the Bank, the Company and the Mutual Company are referred to below or elsewhere
herein.




Massachusetts Bank Regulation

As a Massachusetts-chartered savings bank, the Bank is subject to supervision, regulation and examination
by the Division and to various Massachusetts statutes and regulations which govern, among other things,
investment powers, lending and deposit-taking activities, borrowings, maintenance of surplus and reserve
accounts, distribution of earnings, and payment of dividends. In addition, the Bank is subject to Massachusetts
consumer protection laws and regulations. The Division’s approval is required for a Massachusetts bank to
establish or close branches, merge with other banks, issue stock and undertake certain other activities.

Regulatory Enforcement Authority. Any Massachusetts bank that does not operate in accordance with the
regulations, policies and directives of the Commissioner may be subject to sanctions for non-compliance,
including seizure of the property and business of the bank and suspension or revocation of its charter. The
Commissioner may under certain circumstances suspend or remove officers or directors who have violated the
law, conducted a bank’s business in a manner which is unsafe, unsound or contrary to the depositors’ interests, or
been negligent in the performance of their duties. In addition, upon finding that a bank has engaged in an unfair
or deceptive act or practice, the Commissioner may issue an order to cease and desist and impose a fine on the
bank. Finally, Massachusetts consumer protection statutes applicable to a bank permit private individual and
class action law suits and provide for the rescission of consumer transactions, including loans, and the recovery
of statutory and punitive damages and attorneys’ fees in the case of certain violations.

Massachusetts law has recently been amended to restrict certain home mortgage lending practices. The law
applies to banks that make so-called “high cost mortgage loans” and, among other provisions, requires credit
counseling for borrowers, requires that banks have a “reasonable belief” that borrowers are able to make required
payments out of current income, and limits the financing of points and fees.

Massachusetts law prohibits all mortgage lenders, including savings banks, from knowingly making a home
mortgage loan in Massachusetts for the purpose of re-financing an existing home mortgage loan closed within the
preceding five years, or re-financing any other debt of the borrower regardless of when it was incurred, unless the
refinancing is “in the borrower’s interest.” The “borrower’s interest” standard is required to be “narrowly
construed,” meaning that only factors that directly or clearly indicate that the new loan is in the borrower’s
interest will satisfy the statute, with the burden placed on the lender “to determine and to demonstrate that the
refinancing is in the borrower’s interest.” The Commissioner recently issued implementing regulations further
clarifying the factors to be considered by a lender in determining whether a refinancing is in the “borrower’s
interest” and the procedures a bank must follow to demonstrate its compliance with the law.

Massachusetts enacted legislation effective in March 2005 that revised and recodified a wide range of
Massachusetts banking laws. Among other things, the law revised Massachusetts’ branching and lending laws,
liberalizing them in many respects including eliminating rigid restrictions on lending, but requiring that
Massachusetts banks put in place comprehensive loan policies that carefully describe loan programs and the
loan-to-value ratios, amortization requirements, and other elements of those programs.

In February 2005, the Secretary of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts brought a complaint against the
brokerage unit of a Massachusetts bank alleging unlawful conduct in the sale of variable annuities and failure to
supervise its agents, and issued subpoenas to several other banks. Variable annuities, which are tax-deferred
investments based on a mix of stocks or mutual funds, the performance of which affect the payments, normally
carry strict penalties for early withdrawal, commonly referred to as surrender fees. Two banks, including the
bank that had been charged in February 2003, recently signed agreements with the Secretary of the
Commonwealth, agreeing to offer those customers 78 and older in one case, and 75 and older in the other, who
purchased variable annuities in 2003 and 2004 the opportunity to receive the current value of their annuities
without paying surrender charges. The agreements also set forth sales practice restrictions to be implemented by
each of the banks related to variable annuity sales, such as establishing suitability guidelines and conducting
suitability screening prior to effecting variable annuity transactions and providing ongoing monitoring and
training of bank employees involved in sales of variable annuities.
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Parity Regulation. Massachusetts regulations on parity with federally chartered banks and out-of-state
state-chartered banks with branches in Massachusetts establish procedures allowing Massachusetts-chartered
banks to exercise additional or more flexible parallel powers granted to national banks, federal savings banks and
out-of-state state-chartered banks with branches in Massachusetts which are otherwise not permitted under state
law, in accordance with regulations issued by the Division of Banks. Under the parity regulations, a bank which
is either “adequately capitalized” or “well capitalized,” which has not been informed in writing by the
Commissioner or an applicable federal bank regulatory agency that it has been designated to be in “troubled
condition,” and which has received as least a “satisfactory” CRA rating (as defined below) during its most recent
examination by the Commissioner or other applicable federal banking regulatory agency, may engage in certain
activities in which Massachusetts chartered banks ordinarily may not engage. Such activities include, but are not
limited to, the establishment of temporary branch offices, certain investments in corporate affiliates and
subsidiaries, engaging in lease financing transactions, engaging in finder and certain electronic banking activities,
investment in community development and public welfare projects, and the provision of tax planning and
preparation, payroll and financial planning services, among others. The procedures and requirements for
engaging in such activities range from an application process or expedited review and notice process to no
application or notice whatsoever. The applicable procedures and requirements vary according to the nature of the
activity to be engaged in and the capitalization of the bank. As of the date of this document, the Bank was “well
capitalized,” had received a CRA rating of “satisfactory” and was not in “troubled condition” and was therefore
eligible to engage in certain of the above-referenced activities, subject to the applicable procedures and
requirements of Massachusetts regulation.

In January 2005, the U.S. District Court for the District of Massachusetts ruled that the Gramm-Leach-
Bliley Act of 1999 (“GLBA™) preempts four provisions of Massachusetts law regulating the way banks sell
insurance as agent or broker. Pursuant to Massachusetts law, the Commissioner of Banks and the Commissioner
of Insurance waived the applicability of the preempted provisions to Massachusetts banks after determining that
such a waiver is necessary to permit Massachusetts banks to compete with national banks in the sale of
insurance. The preempted rules are the so-called “referral prohibition,” the “referral fee prohibition,” the
“waiting period restriction” and the “separation restriction.” The “referral prohibition” allows bank employees to
refer customers to the bank’s insurance agency only if the customer first inquires about insurance, and as a result
prohibits a bank teller from initiating a discussion about insurance with a customer. The “referral fee prohibition”
forbids banks from paying additional compensation to unlicensed bank employees including tellers who make
referrals to the bank’s insurance agency. The “waiting period restriction” allows banks to solicit the sale of
insurance from loan applicants only after the loan application has been approved and only after the commitment
letter has been issued in the case of a mortgage loan. Finally, the “separation restriction” generally requires banks
to keep insurance activities physically separated from a bank’s loan and deposit activities.

Depositors Insurance Fund.  All Massachusetts-chartered savings banks are required to be members of the
Depositors Insurance Fund (“DIF”), a corporation that insures savings bank deposits that are not otherwise
covered by federal deposit insurance. The DIF is authorized to charge savings banks an annual assessment of up
to 1/16th of 1% of a savings bank’s deposits.

Insurance of Accounts and Regulation by the FDIC

The Bank is a member of the BIF, which is administered by the FDIC. Deposits are insured up to applicable
limits by the FDIC and such insurance is backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. Government. As insurer,
the FDIC charges deposit insurance premiums and is authorized to conduct examinations of and to require
reporting by FDIC-insured institutions. It also may prohibit any FDIC-insured institution from engaging in any
activity the FDIC determines by regulation or order to pose a risk to the insurance fund. The FDIC also has the
authority to initiate enforcement actions against savings banks and may terminate deposit insurance if it
determines that the institution has engaged or is engaging in unsafe or unsound practices, or is in an unsafe or
unsound condition.
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The FDIC has authority under federal law to appoint a conservator or receiver for an insured bank under
certain circumstances. The FDIC is required, with certain exceptions, to appoint a receiver or conservator for an
insured state bank if that bank was “critically undercapitalized” on average during the calendar quarter beginning
270 days after the date on which the bank became “critically undercapitalized.” For this purpose, “critically
undercapitalized” means having a ratio of tangible capital to total assets of less than 2%. The FDIC may also
appoint a conservator or receiver for a state bank on the basis of the institution’s financial condition or upon the
occurrence of certain events, including: (i) insolvency (whereby the assets of the bank are less than its liabilities
to depositors and others); (ii) substantial dissipation of assets or earnings through violations of law or unsafe or
unsound practices; (iii) existence of an unsafe or unsound condition to transact business; (iv) likelihood that the
bank will be unable to meet the demands of its depositors or to pay its obligations in the normal course of
business; and (v) insufficient capital, or the incurring or likely incurring of losses that will deplete substantially
all of the institution’s capital with no reasonable prospect of replenishment of capital without federal assistance.

Regulatory Capital Requirements

FDIC-insured savings banks are subject to risk-based capital guidelines that establish a framework for making
regulatory capital requirements more sensitive to the risk profiles of each institution. The Bank is required to
maintain certain levels of regulatory capital in relation to risk-weighted assets. The ratio of such regulatory capital
to risk-weighted assets is referred to as the Bank’s “risk-based capital ratio.” Risk-based capital ratios are
determined by allocating assets and specified off-balance sheet items to four risk-weighted categories ranging from
0% to 100%, with higher levels of capital being required for the categories perceived as representing greater risk.

These guidelines divide a savings bank’s capital into two tiers. The first tier (“Tier I"’) includes common
equity, retained earnings, certain non-cumulative perpetual preferred stock (excluding auction rate issues) and
minority interests in equity accounts of consolidated subsidiaries, less goodwill and other intangible assets
(except mortgage servicing rights and purchased credit card relationships subject to certain limitations).
Supplementary or Tier II capital includes, among other items, cumulative perpetual and long-term limited-life
preferred stock, mandatory convertible securities, certain hybrid capital instruments, term subordinated debt and
the allowance for loan and lease losses, subject to certain limitations, less required deductions. Savings banks are
required to maintain a total risk-based capital ratio equal to at least 8% of risk-weighted assets, of which at least
4% must be Tier I capital.

In addition, the FDIC has established regulations prescribing a minimum Tier I leverage capital ratio (Tier 1
capital to adjusted total assets as specified in the regulations). These regulations provide for a minimum Tier |
leverage ratio of 3% for banks that meet certain specified criteria, including that they have the highest
examination rating and are not experiencing or anticipating significant growth. All other banks are required to
maintain a Tier I leverage ratio of 3% plus an additional cushion of at least 100 to 200 basis points. The FDIC
may, however, set higher leverage and risk-based capital requirements on individual institutions when particular
circumstances warrant. Savings banks experiencing or anticipating significant growth are expected to maintain
capital ratios, including tangible capital positions, above the minimum levels.

The federal banking agencies, including the FDIC, have also adopted regulations to require an assessment of
an institution’s exposure to declines in its capital due to changes in interest rates when assessing the bank’s
capital adequacy. Under such a risk assessment, examiners will evaluate a bank’s capital for interest rate risk on a
case-by-case basis, with consideration of both quantitative and qualitative factors. Institutions with significant
interest rate risk may be required to hold additional capital. The agencies also issued a joint policy statement
providing guidance on interest rate risk management, including a discussion of the critical factors affecting the
agencies’ evaluation of interest rate risk in connection with capital adequacy.

Standards for Safety and Soundness

The federal banking agéncies have adopted a final regulation and Interagency Guidelines Prescribing
Standards for Safety and Soundness (“Guidelines”) to implement the safety and soundness standards required
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under federal law. The Guidelines set forth the safety and soundness standards that the federal banking agencies
use to identify and address problems at insured depository institutions before capital becomes impaired. The
standards set forth in the Guidelines address internal controls and information systems; internal audit program;
credit underwriting; loan documentation; interest rate risk exposure; asset growth; and compensation, fees and
benefits. The agencies also adopted additions to the Guidelines which require institutions to examine asset
quality and earnings standards. If the appropriate federal banking agency determines that an institution fails to
meet any standard prescribed by the Guidelines, the agency may require the institution to submit to the agency an
acceptable plan to achieve compliance with the standard, as required by federal law. The final regulations
establish deadlines for the submission and review of such safety and soundness compliance plans.

Limitations on Dividends and Other Capital Distributions

The FDIC has the authority to prohibit a savings bank from paying dividends if, in the FDIC’s opinion, the
payment of dividends would constitute an unsafe or unsound practice. Federal law also prohibits the payment of
dividends by a bank that will result in the bank failing to meet its applicable capital requirements on a pro forma
basis. Massachusetts law also restricts the Bank from declaring a dividend which would reduce its capital below
(1) the amount required to be maintained by state and federal law and regulations, or (ii) the amount of the Bank’s
liquidation account established in connection with the Reorganization.

Prompt Corrective Action

The federal banking agencies have promulgated regulations to implement a system of prompt corrective
action required by federal law. Under the regulations, a bank shall be deemed to be (i) “well capitalized” if it has
total risk-based capital of 10.0% or more, has a Tier I risk-based capital ratio of 6.0% or more, has a Tier I
leverage capital ratio of 5.0% or more and is not subject to any written capital order or directive; (ii) “adequately
capitalized” if it has a total risk-based capital ratio of 8.0% or more, a Tier I risk-based capital ratio of 4.0% or
more and a Tier [ leverage capital ratio of 4.0% or more (3.0% under certain circumstances) and does not meet
the definition of “well capitalized”; (iii) “undercapitalized” if it has a total risk-based capital ratio that is less than
8.0%, a Tier I risk-based capital ratio that is less than 4.0% or a Tier I leverage capital ratio that is less than 4.0%
(3.0% under certain circumstances); (iv) “significantly undercapitalized” if it has a total risk-based capital ratio
that is less than 6.0%, a Tier I risk-based capital ratio that is less than 3.0% or a Tier I leverage capital ratio that
is less than 3.0%; and (v) “critically undercapitalized™ if it has a ratio of tangible equity to total assets that is
equal to or less than 2.0%. Federal law and regulations also specify circumstances under which a federal banking
agency may reclassify a “well capitalized” institution as “adequately capitalized” and may require an “adequately
capitalized” institution to comply with supervisory actions as if it were in the next lower category (except that the
FDIC may net reclassify a significantly “undercapitalized” institution as “critically undercapitalized™).

“Undercapitalized” banks are subject to growth, capital distribution (including dividend) and other
limitations and are required to submit a capital restoration plan. A bank’s compliance with such plan is required
to be guaranteed by any company that controls the undercapitalized institution. If an “undercapitalized” bank
fails to submit an acceptable plan, it is treated as if it is “significantly undercapitalized.” “Significantly
undercapitalized” banks are subject to one or more of a number of additional restrictions, including an order by
the FDIC to sell sufficient voting stock to become adequately capitalized, requirements to reduce total assets and
cease receipt of deposits from correspondent banks or to dismiss directors or officers, and restrictions on interest
rates paid on deposits, compensation of executive officers and capital distributions by a parent holding company.

Based on the foregoing, the Bank is currently classified as a “well capitalized” savings institution.

Activities and Investments of Insured State-Chartered Banks

Section 24 of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act (“FDIA”) generally limits the activities and equity
investments of FDIC-insured, state-chartered banks to those that are permissible for national banks,
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notwithstanding state laws. Under regulations dealing with equity investments, an insured state bank generally
may not, directly or indirectly, acquire or retain any equity investment of a type, or in an amount, that is not
permissible for a national bank.

Federal law and FDIC regulations permit certain exceptions to the foregoing limitations. For example,
certain state-chartered banks, such as the Bank, may continue to invest, up to certain limits, in common or
preferred stock listed on a national securities exchange or in the shares of registered investment companies if: (i)
the Bank held such types of investments during the period from September 30, 1990 through November 26,
1991; (ii) the state in which the Bank is chartered permitted such investments as of September 30, 1991; and (iii)
the Bank obtains approval from the FDIC to make or retain such investments. In 1999, the FDIC substantially
revised its regulations implementing Section 24 of the FDIA to ease the ability of FDIC-insured state-chartered
banks to engage in certain activities not permissible for national banks, and to expedite FDIC review of bank
applications and notice to engage in such activities. As of June 30, 2005, the Bank had marketable equity
securities with a cost of $2.0 million pursuant to this exception.

Transactions with Affiliates and Insiders of the Bank

Under current federal law, transactions between depository institutions and their affiliates are governed by
Sections 23A and 23B of the Federal Reserve Act (“FRA”). An affiliate of a savings bank is generally any
company or entity that controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with the savings bank, other than a
subsidiary of the bank. In an organization controlled by a holding company, at a minimum, the parent holding
company of a savings bank and any companies which are controlled by such parent holding company are
affiliates of the savings bank. Generally, Section 23A limits the extent to which the savings bank or its
subsidiaries may engage in “‘covered transactions” with any one affiliate to an amount equal to 10% of such
savings bank’s capital stock and surplus, and contains an aggregate limit on all such transactions with all
affiliates to an amount equal to 20% of such capital stock and surplus. The term “covered transaction” includes
the making of loans or other extensions of credit to an affiliate; the purchase of assets from an affiliate; the
purchase of, or an investment in, the securities of an affiliate; the acceptance of securities of an affiliate as
collateral for a loan or extension of credit to any person; or issuance of a guarantee, acceptance or letter of credit
on behalf of an affiliate. Section 23 A also establishes specific collateral requirements for loans or extensions of
credit to, or guarantees, acceptances or letters of credit issued on behalf of an affiliate. Section 23B requires that
covered transactions and a broad list of other specified transactions be on terms substantially the same, or no less
favorable, to the savings bank or its subsidiary as similar transactions with nonaffiliates.

The Bank’s authority to extend credit to its directors, executive officers and 10% shareholders, as well as to
entities controlled by such persons, is currently governed by the requirements of Sections 22(g) and 22(h) of the
FRA and the FRB’s Regulation O. Among other things, these provisions require that extensions of credit to
insiders (i) be made on terms that are substantially the same as, and follow credit underwriting procedures that
are not less stringent than, those prevailing for comparable transactions with unaffiliated persons and that do not
involve more than the normal risk of repayment or present other unfavorable features, and (ii) not exceed certain
limitations on the amount of credit extended to such persons, individually and in the aggregate, which limits are
based, in part, on the amount of the Bank's capital. In addition, extensions of credit in excess of certain limits
must be approved by the Bank’s board of directors.

Bank Holding Company Regulation

General. The Mutual Company and the Company are subject to comprehensive regulation and regular
examinations by the FRB and the Division. The FRB also has extensive enforcement authority over bank holding
companies, including, among other things, the ability to assess civil money penalties, to issue cease and desist or
removal orders and to require that a holding company divest subsidiaries (including its bank subsidiaries). In
general, enforcement actions may be initiated for violations of law and regulations, written agreements with a
regulatory agency, conditions to a regulatory approval, unsafe or unsound practices, and breaches of fiduciary
duties. As a savings bank, the Bank may elect to have the Company and the Mutual Company regulated as
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savings and loan holding companies by the Office of Thrift Supervision (“OTS”) subject to certain conditions
and restrictions. Regulation as a savings and loan holding company would require application to, and prior
approval of, the OTS.

The Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended (“BHCA”) prohibits a bank holding company from
acquiring substantially all of the assets of a bank or acquiring direct or indirect ownership or control of more than
5% of the voting shares of any bank, increasing such ownership or control of any bank, acquiring all or
substantially all of the assets of another bank or bank holding company, or merging or consolidating with any
bank holding companies without the prior approval of the FRB. The BHCA also prohibits a bank holding
company, with certain exceptions, from acquiring direct or indirect ownership or control of more than 5% of the
voting shares of any company which is not a bank or bank holding company, or from engaging directly or
indirectly in activities other than those of banking, managing or controlling banks, or providing services for its
subsidiaries. The principal exceptions to these prohibitions involve certain non-bank activities which, by statute
or by FRB regulation or order, have been identified as activities closely related to the business of banking or
managing or controlling banks, or activities of a financial nature, or activities incidental or complimentary to
financial activities. In making such determinations, the FRB is required to weigh the expected benefit to the
public against the possible adverse effects. The Riegle-Neal Interstate Banking and Branching Efficiency Act of
1994 generally authorizes bank holding companies to acquire banks located in any states, possibly subject to
certain state-imposed age and deposit concentration limits, and also generally authorizes interstate mergers and,
on a somewhat more restricted basis, interstate branching.

The GLBA was signed into law on November 12, 1999 and certain key provisions became effective March
11, 2000. This federal legislation is intended to modernize the financial services industry by establishing a
comprehensive framework to permit affiliations among commercial banks, insurance companies, securities firms
and other financial service providers. As a result of the legislation, bank holding companies are permitted to
engage in a wider variety of financial activities than permitted under prior law, particularly with respect to
insurance and securities activities. In addition, in a change from prior law, bank holding companies may now be
owned, controlled or acquired by any company engaged in financially-related activities. To the extent that it
permits banks, securities firms and insurance companies to affiliate, the financial services industry may
experience further consolidation. This additional consolidation could result in a growing number of larger
financial institutions that offer a wider variety of financial services than the Company might be able to offer. This
could adversely impact the Company’s ability to retain and attract customers that prefer to obtain all of their
financial services from one provider and, ultimately, the Company’s profitability.

The Company is subject to capital adequacy guidelines for bank holding companies (on a consolidated
basis) which are substantially similar to those of the FDIC for the Bank. The Company’s stockholders’ equity
exceeds these requirements. In February 2003, the FRB issued a final rule that continues to permit trust preferred
securities to qualify as an element of bank holding companies’ Tier 1 capital but on a more limited basis. The
rule continues to limit the aggregate amount of trust preferred securities and certain other restricted core capital
elements to 25% of Tier 1 capital, net of goodwill. Previously, however, goodwill was not deducted when
calculating the 25% limit. The amount of trust preferred securities and other restricted core capital elements in
excess of the limit could be included in Tier 2 capital, subject to certain limits. The new limits become fully
effective on March 31, 2007. Before then, bank holding companies with outstanding trust preferred securities and
other restricted core capital elements that do not conform to the new limits must consult with their Federal
Reserve Bank on plans to ensure that the companies are not placing undue reliance on these instruments and,
where appropriate, to reduce such reliance.

On March 16, 2004, Trust I, a newly formed trust sponsored by the Company, participated in a pooled
offering of trust preferred securities. In connection with this offering, Trust I issued $3.0 million of trust
preferred securities and reinvested the proceeds in a 30-year $3.0 million junior subordinated debenture issued by
the Company. The proceeds of this offering qualify as an element of the Company’s Tier 1 capital under both the
current and proposed FRB capital adequacy guidelines and represented 10% of the Company’s Tier 1 capital as
of June 30, 2005. The Company currently does not have any goodwill.
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Under FRB policy, a bank holding company must serve as a source of strength for its subsidiary bank.
Under this policy, the FRB may require, and has required in the past, a holding company to contribute additional
capital to an undercapitalized subsidiary bank.

Dividends. The FRB has issued a policy statement expressing its view that a bank holding company may
pay cash dividends on common stock only to the extent that its net income available to common stockholders
over the past year is sufficient to cover both the cash dividends and a rate of earnings retention that is consistent
with the organization’s capital needs, asset quality and overall financial condition. The FRB may prohibit a bank
holding company from paying any dividends if its bank subsidiary is classified as “undercapitalized.”

The Division of Banks and the FRB have imposed certain restrictions regarding the waiving of dividend
payments by the Company to the Mutual Company. To date, the Mutual Company has not waived any dividends
paid by the Company. If, in the future, the Mutual Company sought to waive dividends paid by the Company and
obtained the approval of the Division of Banks and the FRB to do so, the cumulative amount of waived dividends
would not be available for payment by the Company to minority stockholders and would be maintained in a
restricted capital account. While such account would not have to be reflected in the Company’s financial
statements, it would not be available for distribution to minority stockholders if the Mutual Company decided to
convert to stock form in the future.

Limitations on Certain Capital Transactions. Bank holding companies are required to give the FRB prior
written notice of any purchase or redemption of their outstanding equity securities if the gross consideration for
the purchase or redemption, when combined with the net consideration paid for all such purchases or
redemptions during the preceding twelve months, is equal to 10% or more of their consolidated net worth. The
FRB may disapprove such a purchase or redemption if it determines that the proposal would constitute an unsafe
or unsound practice or would violate any law, regulation, FRB order, or any condition imposed by, or written
agreement with, the FRB. This notification requirement does not apply to any company that meets the well-
capitalized standard for commercial banks, has a safety and soundness examination rating of at least a “2” and is
not subject to any unresolved supervisory issues.

Customer Information Security

The FDIC and other bank regulatory agencies have adopted guidelines for establishing standards for
safeguarding nonpublic personal information about customers that implement provisions of the GLBA
(“Information Security Guidelines”). Among other things, the Information Security Guidelines require each
financial institution, under the supervision and ongoing oversight of its Board of Directors or an appropriate
committee thereof, to develop, implement and maintain a comprehensive written information security program
designed to ensure the security and confidentiality of customer information, to protect against any anticipated
threats or hazards to the security or integrity of such information; and to protect against unauthorized access to or
use of such information that could result in substantial harm or inconvenience to any customer. In April 2005, the
FDIC and other bank regulatory agencies issued further guidance for the establishment of these information
security standards, requiring financial institutions to develop and implement response programs designed to
address incidents of unauthorized access to sensitive customer information maintained by the financial institution
or its service provider, including customer notification procedures.

Privacy

The GLBA requires financial institutions to implement policies and procedures regarding the disclosure of
nonpublic personal information about consumers to nonaffiliated third parties. In general, the statute requires the
Bank to explain to consumers the Bank’s policies and procedures regarding the disclosure of such nonpublic
personal information, and, except as otherwise required by law, the Bank is prohibited from disclosing such
information except as provided in the Bank’s polices and procedures. The Fair and Accurate Credit Transactions
Act of 2003 generally restricts information provided by a creditor to an affiliate for marketing purposes. There
are exceptions to the restrictions, including one that permits sharing information with affiliates in order to market
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to existing customers. The law also requires that creditors make certain disclosures to consumers after providing
negative information to credit bureaus or offering credit to consumers on certain unfavorable terms, imposes new
rules designed to address identity theft, permanently bars the states from legislating in key areas of the national
credit reporting system, and amends other provisions of the Fair Credit Reporting Act.

Federal Securities Law

The common stock of the Company is registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”)
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”). The Company is subject to the information,
proxy solicitation, insider trading restrictions and other requirements of the SEC under the Exchange Act.

The SEC in June 2004 proposed to define the circumstances in which banks may engage in securities-
related activities without having to register as securities brokers. The proposal follows a set of interim rules
issued by the SEC in 2001 in response to the GLBA’s creation of several specific exemptions from broker
registration for banks engaging in securities activities. Before the GLBA, banks were exempt altogether from
broker registration regardless of the securities activities they conducted. Under the newly proposed rules, there
are eleven exemptions from the broker registration requirement including, among others: (i) a so-called third-
party networking exception, allowing banks to partner with registered securities brokers on certain specified
terms to offer non-deposit investment products and other securities, (ii) a trustee and fiduciary account exception,
permitting banks under certain conditions to receive sales compensation for effecting customer transactions in a
trustee or fiduciary capacity, and (iil) a bank custody exception, defining in greater detail the types of custodial
activities that are permitted without securities broker registration. Banks engaging in securities brokerage
activities not falling within one of the exemptions will be required to register as securities brokers once the rules
go into effect.

Federal Reserve System

The FRB requires all depository institutions to maintain non-interest-bearing reserves at specified levels
against their transaction accounts (primarily checking, NOW and Super NOW checking accounts). At June 30,
2005, the Bank was in compliance with these reserve requirements. Savings banks are authorized to borrow from
the Federal Reserve Bank “discount window,” but FRB regulations require savings banks to exhaust other
reasonable alternative sources of funds, including FHLB borrowings, before borrowing from the Federal Reserve
Bank.

USA Patriot Act

The USA Patriot Act of 2001 (the “Patriot Act”), designed to deny terrorists and others the ability to obtain
anonymous access to the United States financial system, has significant implications for depository institutions,
brokers, dealers and other businesses involved in the transfer of money. The Patriot Act, together with the
implementing regulations of various federal regulatory agencies, mandates or will require financial institutions to
implement additional policies and procedures with respect to, or additional measures designed to address, any or
all of the following matters, among others: customer identification, money laundering; suspicious activities and
currency transaction reporting; and currency crimes. The Patriot Act and various implementing regulations also
permit information sharing for counter-terrorist purposes between federal law enforcement agencies and financial
institutions, as well as among financial institutions, subject to certain conditions, and require the FRB (and other
federal banking agencies) to evaluate the effectiveness of an applicant in combating anti-money laundering
activities when considering applications filed under Section 3 of the BHCA or the Bank Merger Act.
Management believes that the Company and the Bank are currently in compliance with all currently effective
requirements prescribed by the Patriot Act and all applicable final implementing regulations.
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The Sarbanes-Oxley Act

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (“SOXA™) implements a broad range of corporate governance and
accounting measures for public companies designed to promote honesty and transparency in corporate America
and better protect investors from corporate wrongdoings. SOXA’s principal legislation includes:

» the creation of an independent accounting oversight board;

» auditor independence provisions which restrict non-audit services that accountants may provide to their
audit clients; '

= additional corporate governance and responsibility measures, including the requirement that the chief
executive officer and chief financial officer certify financial statements;

e the forfeiture of bonuses or other incentive-based compensation and profits from the sale of an issuer’s
securities by directors and senior officers in the twelve month period following initial publication of any
financial statements that later require restatement;

» anincrease in the oversight of, and enhancement of certain requirements relating to audit committees of
public companies and how they interact with the company’s independent anditors;

e requirement that audit committee members must be independent and are absolutely barred from
accepting consulting, advisory or other compensatory fees from the issuer;

e requirement that companies disclose whether at least one member of the committee is a “financial
expert” (as such term will be defined by the SEC) and if not, why not;

» expanded disclosure requirements for corporate insiders, including accelerated reporting of stock
transactions by insiders and a prohibition on insider trading during pension blackout periods;

*  a prohibition on personal loans to directors and officers, except certain loans made by insured financial
institutions;

o disclosure of a code of ethics and filing a Form 8-K for a change or waiver of such code;
» mandatory disclosure by analysts of potential conflicts of interest; and

+ arange of enhanced penalties for fraud and other violations.

Although we anticipate that the Company will incur additional expense in complying with the provisions of
SOXA and the resulting regulations, such expense cannot not be quantified at this time.

Community Reinvestment Act

Under the Community Reinvestment Act, as amended (the “CRA”), as implemented by FDIC regulations, a
savings bank has a continuing and affirmative obligation, consistent with its safe and sound operation, to help,
meet the credit needs of its entire community, including low and moderate income neighborhoods. The CRA
does not establish specific lending requirements or programs for financial institutions nor does it limit an
institution’s discretion to develop the types of products and services that it believes are best suited to its
particular community, consistent with the CRA. The CRA requires the FDIC, in connection with its examination
of a savings institution, to assess the institution’s record of meeting the credit needs of its community and to take
such record into account in its evaluation of certain applications by such institution, including applications to
acquire branches and other financial institutions. The CRA requires the FDIC to provide a written evaluation of
an institution’s CRA performance utilizing a four-tiered descriptive rating system. The Bank’s latest CRA rating
was “satisfactory.”

Recently, the Federal Reserve and FDIC amended their Community Reinvestment Act regulations to reduce
the regulatory burden on banks with assets of less than $1 billion. The amendments raise the small bank asset
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size threshold to $1 billion without regard to holding company affiliation. The rules, which become effective
September 1, 2005, also reduce data collection and reporting burden for so-called “intermediate small banks”
—banks with assets between $250 million and $1 billion—while at the same time encouraging community
development lending, investment and services by those banks. Under the new rules, intermediate small banks
will no longer be required to have their CRA ratings rigidly based S0 percent on lending and 25 percent on each
of their investments and services, nor will intermediate small banks be required to collect and report CRA loan
data. Intermediate small banks may now be evaluated under two separately rated tests: the small bank lending
test and a new community development test that includes an evaluation of community development loans,
investments, and services in light of community needs and the capacity of the bank. The CRA rules continue,
however, to allow small banks, including intermediate small banks, to opt for examination as large banks under
the traditional lending, investment, and services tests.

Massachusetts has its own statutory counterpart to the Community Reinvestment Act which is also
applicable to the Bank. The Massachusetts version is generally similar to the Community Reinvestment Act but
utilizes a five-tiered descriptive rating system. Massachusetts law requires the-Commissioner to consider, but not
be limited to, a bank’s record of performance under Massachusetts law in considering any application by the
bank to establish a branch or other deposit-taking facility, to relocate an office, or to merge or consolidate with or
acquire the assets and assume the liabilities of any other banking institution, and in connection with certain other
applications. The Bank’s most recent rating under the Massachusetts law was “satisfactory.”

Federal Home Loan Bank System

The Bank is a member of the FHLB of Boston, which is one of 12 regional FHLBs that support the home
financing credit function of savings institutions. Each FHLB serves as a reserve or central bank for its members
within its assigned region. It is funded primarily from proceeds derived from the sale of consolidated obligations
of the FHLB System. It makes loans to members (i.e., advances) in accordance with policies and procedures
established by the board of directors of the FHLB. These policies and procedures are subject to the regulation and
oversight of the Federal Housing Finance Board. All advances from the FHLB are required to be fully secured by
sufficient collateral as determined by the FHLB.

As a member, the Bank is required to purchase and maintain stock in the FHLB of Boston. At June 30,
2005, the Bank owned $3.9 million of FHLB stock. In past years, the Bank has received dividends on its FHLB
stock. The dividend yield from FHLB stock was 3.79% for the year ended June 30, 2005. No assurance can be
given that such dividends will continue in the future at such levels.

Under federal law, the FHLBs are required to provide funds for the resolution of troubled savings
institutions and to contribute to low and moderately priced housing programs through direct loans or interest
subsidies on advances targeted for community investment and low- and moderate-income housing projects.

These contributions have affected adversely the level of FHLB dividends paid and could continue to do so
in the future. These contributions could also have an adverse effect on the value of FHLB stock in the future. A
reduction in value of the Bank’s FHLB stock may result in a corresponding reduction in the Bank’s capital.

Environmental Issues

The Bank encounters certain environmental risks in its lending activities. Under federal and state
environmental laws, lenders may become liable for costs of cleaning up hazardous materials found on property
securing their loans. In addition, the existence of hazardous materials may make it unattractive for a lender to
foreclose on such properties. Although environmental risks are usually associated with loans secured by
commercial real estate, risks also may be substantial for loans secured by residential real estate if environmental
contamination makes the property unsuitable for use. This could also have a negative effect on nearby property
values. The Bank attempts to control its risk by requiring appropriate environmental assessments as part of its
underwriting of all non-residential real estate mortgage loans over $250,000.
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The Bank believes its procedures regarding the assessment of environmental risk are adequate and, as of
June 30, 20085, the Bank was unaware of any environmental issues, that would subject it to any material liability.
However, no assurance can be given that the values of properties securing loans in the Bank’s portfolio will not
be adversely affected by unforeseen environmental risks.

Employees

As of June 30, 2005, the Bank had 95 full-time equivalent employees. The employees are not represented by

a collective bargaining unit, and the Bank considers its relationship with its employees to be good.

TTEM 2. Description of Property.

The following table sets forth certain information regarding the Company’s offices at June 30, 2005.

Lease Renewal
Year Leased/ Expiration Options

Location Opened Owned Dates - Through
81 Main Street -
Medway, Massachusetts 1871 Owned — —_
1098 Main Street
Millis, Massachusetts 1962 Owned — —
18 North Meadow Road .
Medfield, Massachusetts 1990 Leased 2008 2018
1000 Franklin Village Drive
Franklin, Massachusetts 1993 Leased 2008 2018
281A East Central Street
Franklin, Massachusetts 1997 Leased 2007 - 2012
267 Hartford Avenue
Bellingham, Massachusetts 1999 Owned — —
59 Main Street
Hopkinton, Massachusetts 1999 Leased 2009 2014
140 South Main Street
Milford, Massachusetts 2000 Leased 2009 2019
4 Forge Hill Road*
Franklin, Massachusetts 1999 — — —

Limited service branch at Senior Living Center

ITEM 3. Legal Proceedings.

The Company is not involved in any pending legal proceedings other than legal proceedings occurring in the
ordinary course of business which, in the aggregate, involve amounts believed by management to be immaterial
to the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

ITEM 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

No matters were submitted to a vote of stockholders during the fourth quarter of the 2005 fiscal year.

18




PART II
ITEM 5. Market for Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters.
COMMON STOCK AND RELATED MATTERS

The Company’s Common Stock is listed on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board under the symbol
“SERC”. As of September 9, 2005, the Company had seven registered market makers, 363 stockholders of record
(excluding the number of persons or entities holding stock in street name through various brokerage firms), and
1,634,385 shares outstanding. As of such date, Service Bancorp, MHC , the Company’s mutual holding
company, held 907,694 shares of common stock, or 55.5% of shares outstanding.

The following table sets forth market price and dividend information for the Company’s common stock for
the past two fiscal years. The Over-the-Counter Market quotes reflect inter-dealer prices without retail markup,
markdown or commission and may not represent actual transactions.

Cash
Fiscal Year Ended Diviadends
June 30, 2005 High Low Declared
FIrst QUarter . ..ottt e $27.50 $25.75 None
Second QUAITET . ... ..ottt $2895  $27.00 None
Third QUArter . ... ..ottt i e e $29.25  $26.50 None
Fourth Quarter .. ......... i it $27.00  $25.10 Nore

Cash
Fiscal Year Ended Dividends
June 30, 2004 High Low Declared
First Quarter . . ......oo ot e $24.50  $21.75 None
Second QUAIEr ... ..o\ttt e $29.20  $24.20 None
Third QUArter . ... ...t $32.00 $27.75 None
Fourth Quarter . ... ... ... . ... i e $31.50 $24.75 None

Payment of dividends on the Company’s common stock is subject to determination and declaration by the
Board of Directors and depends upon a number of factors, including capital requirements, regulatory limitations
on the payment of dividends, the Company’s results of operations and financial condition, tax considerations and
general economic conditions. No assurance can be given that dividends will be declared or, if declared, what the
amount of dividends will be, or whether such dividends, once declared, will continue.

In 2003, the Board of Directors of the Company approved a Stock Repurchase Plan under which the
Company is authorized to acquire up to 4% of the outstanding common stock, or up to approximately 65,925
shares of the issued and outstanding shares of its common stock in the open market or in private transactions.
Under the Stock Repurchase Plan, shares may be repurchased from time to time and in such amounts as market
conditions warrant, subject to regulatory considerations. The following table provides information on the
purchases of common stock under the Stock Repurchase Plan for the quarter ended June 30, 2005.

Repurchase Plan Information

Total number of Maximum
shares purchased number of shares
as part of that may yet be
Total number of Average price publicly purchased under
Period shares purchased(1) paid per share  announced plan the plan
April 1, 2005-April 30,2005 .. .......... — — —
May 1, 2005-May 31,2005 ............. 26,700 $25.55 26,700
June 1, 2005-June 30,2005 ............. — —
Total ... ... i 26,700 $25.55 26,700 24,589

(1) The Company made no purchases of its common stock in the quarter ended June 30, 2005 other than under
the Stock Repurchase Plan.
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ITEM 6. Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Forward-Looking Statements

In addition to historical information, this document contains forward-looking statements. For this purpose,
any statements contained herein that are not statements of historical fact may be deemed to be forward-looking
statements. Without limiting the foregoing, the words “believe”, “anticipates”, “plans”, “expects” and similar
expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. There are a number of important factors that
could cause the Company’s actual results to differ materially from those contemplated by such forward-looking
statements. These important factors include, without limitation, competitive conditions in the Bank’s marketplace
generally, the Bank’s continued ability to originate quality loans, fluctuation in interest rates including
fluctuations which may effect the Bank’s interest rate spread, real estate conditions in the Bank’s lending areas,
changes in the securities or financial markets, changes in loan defaults and charge-off rates, general and local
economic conditions, the Bank’s continued ability to attract and retain deposits, the Company’s ability to control
costs, new accounting pronouncements, and changing regulatory requirements. The Company undertakes no
obligation to publicly release the results of any revisions to those forward-looking statements, which may be
made to reflect events or circumstances after the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events,

Critical Accounting Policies

Note 2 to the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Annual Report on Form
10-KSB for the year ended June 30, 2005, contains a summary of the Company’s significant accounting policies.
The Company believes its policy with respect to the methodology for its determination of the allowance for loan
losses involves higher degrees of complexity and requires management to make difficult and subjective
judgments which often require assumptions or estimates about highly uncertain matters. Changes in these
judgments, assumptions or estimates could cause reported results to differ materially. This critical policy and its
application are periodically reviewed with the Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Board of Directors.
Refer to the “Allowance for Loan Losses” section of this management’s discussion and analysis for further
discussion of the allowance methodology.

FINANCIAL CONDITION AT JUNE 36, 2605

Total assets increased by $31.9 million, or 10.0%, from $318.7 million at June 30, 2004 to $350.6 million at
June 30, 2005. The increase was primarily attributable to growth of $39.3 million, or 16.7%, in net loans since
June 30, 2004. These increases were partially offset by a $5.8 million decrease in investment securities and a
$1.4 million decrease in short-term investments. In addition to a reduction in investment securities and short-term
investments, funding for the asset growth was also provided by an increase in deposits of $15.7 million, or 6.5%,
to $254.8 million and an increase in borrowed funds of $14.3 million, or 28.3%, to $64.6 million.

Loans

Net loans increased $39.3 million, or 16.7%, from June 30, 2004 to $274.6 million at June 30, 2005. For the
year ended June 30, 2005, the Bank, through its Strata Mortgage Center division, originated $47.5 million in
residential real estate loans compared with $60.9 million in originations last year. This year’s lower amount of
originations reflects a decrease in residential loan refinance activity as interest rates have increased. The Bank
also purchased $200,000 in residential loans this year compared to $22.5 million in loan purchases last year. The
decrease in loan purchases was due to the Bank’s expansion of its own loan origination services, which reduced
its reliance on loan purchases for residential loan portfolio growth. Principal payments on residential loans were
$27.0 million this year compared with $39.2 million last year. The decrease was also a reflection of the slower
refinance market. The Bank also sold $5.3 million and $9.5 million in residential loans, servicing retained, for the
years ended June 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively. With this activity, the Bank’s residential mortgages increased
anet of $15.3 million, or 11.6%, since June 30, 2004. Net deferred loan costs and premiums were approximately
level with last year at $1.0 million.
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Commercial loans continued to be an area of opportunity and strong growth for the Bank. The Bank
originated $48.8 million for all commercial, commercial real estate and construction loans for the year ended
June 30, 20035. After loan paydowns, total commercial, commercial real estate and construction loans increased
by $21.9 million, or 26.0%, since June 30, 2004. Home equity and second mortgage loans increased 12.7% since
June 30, 2004 to $21.8 million at June 30, 2005. The strong growth was due to the Bank’s sales efforts and
aggressive promotions for these products.

The following information relates to the composition of the Bank’s loan portfolio in dollar amounts and in
percentages (before net deferred costs and premiums, and allowances for loan losses) as of the dates indicated.

June 30,
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent

{Dollars in Thousands)
Real estate loans:
One-to four-family

residential . ... .. $143,045 51.81% $130,278 55.11% $ 96,330 53.54% $ 83,522 55.13% $ 66,392 53.62%
Residential
construction . ... 4,029 1.46 1,453 0.61 155 0.09 1,024 0.68 798 0.65
Commercial and
muiti-family .. .. 68,182 24.69 53,051 22.44 41,522 22.96 37,700 24.88 31,109 25.12
Commercial
construction . ... 12,249 444 10,141 4.29 11,904 6.58 6,489 4,28 3,915 3.16
Total real estate
loans ........ 227,505 82.40 194,923 82.45 150,411 83.17 128,735 84.97 102,214 82.55
Consumer loans:
Passbook secured . . 363 0.13 372 0.16 494 0.27 528 0.35 626 0.51
Home equity and
second
mortgages . ..... 21,806 7.90 19,352 8.19 15,377 8.50 10,047 6.63 9,132 7.37
Other ............ 814 0.29 795 0.33 1,054 0.58 1,354 0.89 1,688 1.36
Total consumer
loans ........ 22,983 8.32 20,519 8.68 16,925 9.35 11,929 7.87 11,446 9.24
Commercial business
loans ............ 25,631 9.28 20,968 8.87 13,530 7.48 10,855 7.16 10,167 8.21
Total gross loans . . . . . 276,119  100.00% 236,410 100.00% 180,866 100.00% 151,519 100.00% 123,827 100.00%
Net deferred loan costs
and premiums . . ... 985 1,059 801 586 69
Allowance for loan
losses ........... ' (2,506) (2,133) (1,745) (1,258) (974)

Total loans, net ...... $274,598 $235,336 $179,922 $150,847 $122,922
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Loan Maturity and Repricing. The following table sets forth certain information as of June 30, 2003
regarding the dollar amount of loans maturing in the Bank’s portfolio based on their contractual terms to
maturity. Demand loans having no stated schedule of repayments and no stated maturity, and overdrafts are
reported as due in one year or less. Adjustable and floating rate loans are included in the period in which interest
rates are next scheduled to adjust rather than the period in which they contractually mature, and fixed-rate loans
are included in the period in which the final contractual repayment is due. This table does not include
prepayments.

At June 30, 2005

One
Within Through Beyond
One Year Five Years Five Years Total

(Dollars in Thousands)
Real estate loans:

One- to four-family residential ......................... $ 8,234 § 53,513 $81,298 $143,045

Residential construction . ...... ... ... 348 844 2,837 4,029
Commercial and multi-family ............ ... .. ........ 9,118 53,670 5,394 68,182
Commercial construction ....... ... ..t 9,950 1,579 720 12,249
Totalreal estate loans ............. ... v, 27,650 109,606 90,249 227,505

Other loans:
CONSUIMET .« . ottt et e e e e 14,187 5,749 3,047 22,983

Commercial business . . . ... ot 15,012 10,459 160 25,631
............................................. $56,849 $125,814 $93,456 $276,119

The following table sets forth at June 30, 2005, the dollar amount of gross loans, net of unadvanced funds
on loans, contractually due or scheduled to reprice after June 30, 2006, and whether such loans have fixed
interest rates or adjustable interest rates. This table does not include prepayments.

Due or Repricing After June 30,
2006

Fixed Adjustable Total
(Dollars in Thousands)

Real estate loans:

One- to four-family residential . .......... ... ... .. ... ... .. .... $ 81,177 % 53,634 $134.811
Residential construction . ...... . i e 3,338 343 3,681
Commercial and multi-family .......... ... . . .. i 8,412 50,652 59,064
Commercial CONSIIUCHON . . . . oottt e e e e —_ 2,299 2,299

Total real estate oans . .. ... .o 92,927 106,928 199,855

Other loans:

ConsSUmMEr [0aNS . oo 6,521 2,275 8,796

Commercial BUSINESS . .. ..ttt e e 2,860 7,759 10,619
Total oams .. ..o $102,308 $116,962 $219,270
Investments

Total investment securities (amortized cost) decreased $5.7 million, or 10.2%, from June 30, 2004 to June
30, 2005. The decrease was mostly due to amortization and prepayments on mortgage-backed securities and
maturities, sales and calls on federal agency securities and corporate bonds totaling $21.2 million exceeding new
securities purchases of $15.5 million. Investment securities have been a less attractive investment due to the low
interest rate environment for much of the year and its effect on securities yield. The Company’s continued
objective is to prudently increase its loan portfolio, primarily in commercial and residential loans.
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During fiscal year 2004, the Bank sold a corporate bond designated as held to maturity. Bank management
had considered the bond’s assignment by the bond rating agencies to negative credit watch for possible
downgrading to junk bond status and management reviewed the financial condition and operating performance of
the issuer. As a result, management determined that there was “significant deterioration™ in the credit worthiness
of the bond and subsequently sold the bond for $512,000, which resulted in a realized gain of $34,000. Under
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt
and Equity Securities,” the determination of “significant deterioration™ of the credit worthiness of the held to
maturity bond and subsequent sale does not call into question management’s intent to hold other debt securities

to maturity in the future.

At June 30, 2005, $45.8 million, or 91.7%, of the Bank’s securities were designated as available for sale and
$4.2 million, or 8.3%, were designated as held to maturity compared with $46.3 million, or 83.4%, and $9.2
million, or 16.6%, at June 30, 2004, respectively. The net unrealized gain on securities classified as available for
sale was $741,000 at June 30, 2005 compared with a net unrealized gain of $854,000 at June 30, 2004.

At June 30, 2005, short-term investments, which consist primarily of overnight fund investments, totaled
$2.5 million. Overnight funds are maintained for liquidity purposes, particularly at end of month periods due to
the volatility in certain of the Bank’s deposits. In addition, excess funds are expected to be utilized to fund the

origination and purchase of new loans.

The following table sets forth certain information regarding the amortized cost and fair values of the Bank’s
securities and other investments, at the dates indicated.

Securities:

Securities available for sale:
Federal agency securities
Federal agency mortgage-backed

SECUrities . ...
Other debt securities ... ..............

Total debt securities
Marketable equity securities ...........

Total securities available forsale ...........

Securities held to maturity:
Federal agency mortgage-backed
SECUrities . ...t
Other debt securities . ................

Total securities held to maturity ............

Total securities

Other investments:
Bank liquidity fund .. ................
Federal fundssold...................
FHLBstock........................

Total other investments

June 30,
2005 2004 2003
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair Amortized Fair
Cost Value Cost Value Cost Value
(Dollars in Thousands)
$11,934 $11966 $ 7953 $ 7,935 $13,528 $13,834
12,637 12,633 14217 14,064 12,292 12,468
19,219 19,815 22,748 23,765 24,478 26,509
43,790 44,414 44,918 45,764 50,298 52,811
1,969 2,086 1,409 1,417 1,025 790
45,759 46,500 46,327 47,181 51,323 53,601
3,253 3,349 5,355 5,538 12,806 13,246
902 927 3,894 4,041 4,751 5,184
4,155 4,276 9,249 9,579 17,557 18,430
$49,914 $50,776 $55,576 $56,760 $68,830 $72,031
§ — § — $18,500
2,454 3,903 9,872
_ 35908 2936 _ 1,948
$ 6,362 $ 6,339 $30.320




The table below sets forth certain information regarding the amortized cost, weighted average yields and
contractual maturities of the Bank’s debt securities portfolio as of June 30, 2005. Mortgage-backed securities are
shown at their final maturity but are expected to have shorter average lives.

More than One Year More than Five Years

One Year or Less to Five Years to Ten Years More than Ten Years Total
Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
Amortized Average Amortized Average Amortized Average Amortized Average Amortized Average
Cost Yield Cost Yield Cost Yield Cost Yield Cost Yield

(Dollars in Thousands)
Debt securities

available for
sale:
Agency

securities ... $ — — %  $11,934 4.08% $ — — % $ — — % $11,934 4.08%
Mortgage-

backed

securities . . . — — 166 5.38 2,339 4.52 10,132 4.58 12,637 4.58
Other debt

securities . . . 2,013 6.27 15,262 6.08 485 7.47 1,459 7.73 19,219 6.26

Total debt
securities
available for
sale ......... $2,013 627%  $27,362 5.20% $2,824 5.03%  §$11,591 4.98%  $43,790 5.18%

Debt securities
held to
maturity:
Mortgage-
backed
securities ... $ — — % $ 438 5.58% $ 97 6.08% $ 2,718 649%  $ 3253 6.36%
Other debt
securities . . . 496 6.55 406 7.31 —_ 902 6.89

Total debt
securities held
to maturity ... $ 496 6.55%

I

844 6.41%

©
@
N=]
~J

6.08% $ 2718 6.49%  § 4,155 6.47%

l\

Deposits

Deposits increased $15.7 million, or 6.5%, since June 30, 2004 to $254.8 million at June 30, 2005. Core or
non-certificate deposits increased $3.7 million, to $152.3 million, while higher cost term certificates increased
$12.0 million to $102.5 million at June 30, 2005. Demand deposits increased $3.6 million, or 10.1%, to $39.5
million, NOW accounts increased $2.9 million, or 9.1%, while money market deposits decreased $699,000, or
2.0%, and regular savings decreased $2.2 million, or 4.7%. Of the $102.5 million of certificates of deposit
accounts at June 30, 2005, $79.1 million, or 77.2%, were scheduled to mature within one year. While this
percentage is significant, based on its monitoring of historical trends in deposit flows and its current pricing
strategy for deposits, management believes the Bank will retain a large portion of its certificate of deposit
accounts upon maturity.

The following table indicates the amount of the Bank’s certificates of deposit by time remaining until
maturity as of June 30, 2005,

Maturity
3Months QOver3to6 Over6tol2 Overl2
or Less Months Months Months Total
(Dollars in Thousands)

Certificates of deposit less than $100,000 ........... $12,100 $18,387 $24716  $15,401 $ 70,604

Weighted averagerate ................ .. ... 228% 2.64% 293% 3.19% 2.80%
Certificates of deposit of $100,000 or more . ......... 4,715 8,973 10,246 7,937 31,871

Weighted averagerate ...................... 2.39% 2.77% 3.01% 3.30% 2.92%
Total certificates of deposit . ..................... $16,815  $27,360 $34,962  $23,338 $102,475
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Borrowings

The Bank utilizes advances from the FHLB primarily in connection with its management of the interest rate
sensitivity of its assets and liabilities. The advances are collateralized primarily by certain of the Bank’s
residential mortgage loans. The maximum amount that the FHLB will advance to member institutions, including
the Bank, fluctuates from time to time in accordance with the policies of the FHLB. At June 30, 2005, the Bank
had $64.6 million in outstanding advances from the FHLB and had the capacity to increase that amount by $42.4
million to $107.0 million. The Bank expects to continue to utilize borrowings from the FHLB as part of its
management of the interest rate sensitivity of its assets and liabilities.

During fiscal year 2004, the Company, through Trust I, participated in a pooled offering of trust preferred
securities. In connection with this offering, Trust I issued $3.0 million of trust preferred securities and reinvested
the proceeds in a 30-year $3.0 million junior subordinated debenture issued by the Company. Interest is
calculated on the subordinated debenture and trust preferred securities at a rate equal to the three-month London
Interbank Offering Rate plus 285 basis points. The junior subordinated debenture represents the sole asset of
Trust I. The Company has guaranteed, on a subordinated basis, distributions and other payments due on the trust
preferred securities (the “Guarantee”). The Guarantee, when taken together with the Company’s obligations
under (i) the junior subordinated debentures; (ii) the indenture pursuant to which the junior subordinated
debentures was issued; and (iii) the Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust governing Trust I, constitutes a
full and unconditional guarantee of Trust I’s obligations under the trust preferred securities. The trust preferred
offering provides an additional funding source to support the Company’s asset growth and, as allowed under
regulatory capital guidelines, trust preferred securities, within certain limitations, qualify as regulatory capital.
The Company may, depending on capital and funding needs, participate in trust preferred offerings in the future.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Deposits, loan repayments, prepayments and interest income from loans, proceeds from sales of loans and
securities, maturities and interest on debt securities, and cash flows from operations are the primary sources of
the Bank’s funds for use in lending, investing and other general purposes. While maturities and scheduled
amortization of loans and securities are predictable sources of funds, deposit flows and mortgage prepayments
are greatly influenced by interest rate trends, economic conditions and competition. The Bank also utilizes
borrowed funds from the FHLB to fund its loans and investment purchases in connection with its management of
the interest rate sensitivity of its assets and liabilities.

The Company’s most liquid assets are cash and due from banks, short-term investments, mortgage-backed
securities, federal agency obligations, and other debt securities. The levels of these assets are dependent on the
Company’s operating, financing, lending and investment activities during any given period. At June 30, 2005,
cash and due from banks, short-term investments, and securities maturing within one year amounted to $12.3
million, or 3.5%, of total assets. Additional funds amounting to $78.3 million will be available during the next
year from amortization and estimated prepayments of loans and mortgage-backed securities. The Bank also has
the capacity to borrow an additional $42.4 million from the FHLB as of June 30, 2005.

At June 30, 2005, the Company had commitments to originate loans, unused outstanding lines of credit, and
undisbursed proceeds of loans totaling $69.6 million. The Company anticipates that it will have sufficient funds
available to meet its current loan commitments. Certificates of deposit maturing within one year from June 30,
2005 amounted to $79.1 million. The Company expects that substantially all of the maturing certificate accounts
will be retained by the Company at maturity.

Stockholders’ equity was $26.5 million, or 7.56% of total assets at June 30, 2005, compared with $24.9
million, or 7.82% of total assets at June 30, 2004. The increase in stockholders’ equity resulted primarily from
retained earnings partially offset by an increase in treasury stock. At June 30, 2005, the Company exceeded all of
its regulatory requirements with Tier I capital of $29.0 million and a Tier I capital to average assets ratio of
8.44%, which was above the required level of $13.8 miition or 4.00%. The Tier [ capital to risk-weighted assets
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ratio was 11.13%, which was above the required level of $10.4 million or 4.00%. In addition, with total capital of
$31.5 million, the total capital to risk-weighted assets ratio was 12.09%, which was above the required level of
$20.9 million, or 8.00%.

During fiscal year 2004, Trust I, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, issued $3.0 million of trust
preferred securities and reinvested the proceeds in a 30-year $3.0 million junior subordinated debenture issued by
the Company. Refer to the “Borrowings” section of this management’s discussion and analysis for a further
discussion. Under regulatory capital guidelines, trust preferred securities, within certain limitations, qualify as
regulatory capital. The Company’s regulatory capital as of June 30, 2005 discussed above includes the $3.0
million in trust preferred securities.

Interest Rate Risk

An important risk factor affecting the financial condition and operating results of the Company is interest
rate risk. This risk is managed by periodic evaluation of the interest rate risk inherent in certain balance sheet
accounts, determination of the level of risk considered appropriate given the Company’s capital and liquidity
requirements, business strategy, performance objectives and operating environment, and maintenance of such
risks within guidelines approved by the Board of Directors. Through such management, the Company seeks to
reduce the vulnerability of its operations 1o changes in interest rates. The Company’s Asset/Liability Committee,
comprised of senior management, is responsible for managing interest rate risk and reviewing with the Board of
Directors on a quarterly basis the Company’s activities and strategies, the effect of those strategies on the
Company’s operating results, the Company’s interest rate risk position, and the effect changes in interest rates
would have on the Company’s net interest income. The extent of movement of interest rates is an uncertainty that
could have a negative effect on the earnings of the Company.

The principal strategies used by the Company to manage interest rate risk include (i) emphasizing the
origination and retention of both adjustable-rate and fixed-rate loans, (i) originating shorter-term fixed-rate
commercial real estate loans, (iii) investing in debt securities with maturities with shorter call dates of two to five
years, and (iv) maintaining a high concentration of less interest-rate-sensitive and lower-costing “core deposits.”

Gap Analysis. The matching of assets and liabilities may be analyzed by examining the extent to which
such assets and liabilities are “interest rate sensitive” and by monitoring a bank’s interest rate sensitivity “gap.”
An asset or liability is deemed to be interest rate sensitive within a specific time period if it will mature or reprice
within that time period. The interest rate sensitivity gap is defined as the difference between the amount of
interest-earning assets maturing or repricing within a specific time period and the amount of interest bearing-
liabilities maturing or repricing within that same time period. At June 30, 2005, the Company’s cumulative one-
year gap position, the difference between the amount of interest-earning assets maturing or repricing within one
year and interest-bearing liabilities maturing or repricing within one year, was a slightly negative 4.0%. A gap is
considered positive when the amount of interest rate sensitive assets exceeds the amount of interest rate sensitive
liabilities. A gap is considered negative when the amount of interest rate sensitive liabilities exceeds the amount
of interest rate sensitive assets. Accordingly, during a period of rising interest rates, an institution with a negative
gap position generally would not be in as favorable a position, compared to an institution with a positive gap, to
invest in higher yielding assets. The resulting yield on the institution’s assets generally would increase at a
slower rate than the increase in its cost of interest-bearing liabilities. Conversely, during a period of falling
interest rates, an institution with a negative gap would tend to experience a repricing of its assets at a slower rate
than its interest-bearing liabilities which, consequently, would generally result in its net interest income growing
at a faster rate than an institution with a positive gap position.

The following GAP table sets forth the amortized cost of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing
liabilities outstanding at June 30, 2005, which are anticipated by the Company, based upon certain assumptions,
to reprice or mature in each of the future time periods shown. Except as stated below, the amount of assets and
liabilities that are anticipated to reprice or mature during a particular period were determined in accordance with
the earlier of the repricing term or the contractual maturity of the asset or liability. The table sets forth an
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approximation of the projected repricing of assets and liabilities at June 30, 2005, on the basis of contractual
maturities, anticipated prepayments and scheduled rate adjustments within a three-month period and subsequent
selected time intervals. The loan amounts in the table reflect principal balances expected to be redeployed and/or
repriced as a result of contractual amortization and anticipated prepayments of adjustable-rate and fixed-rate
loans, and as a result of contractual rate adjustments on adjustable-rate loans. Mortgage-backed securities are
categorized according to their expected lives based on prepayment estimates. The agency and corporate debt
obligations have maturities ranging from three to fifteen years, a small portion of which have call features of
between one to three years. The table generally presents the full contractual maturity of these obligations,
notwithstanding the call features.

Amounts maturing or repricing at June 30, 2005

Less
Than 3 3-6 6 Months 1-3 3.5 Over 5
Months Months to1 Year Years Years Years Total
(Dollars in Thousands)
Interest-earning assets:(1)
Loans(2) .. $53,016 314618 $30,043 § 90,988 $41,070 $46,384 $276,119
Securitiesand FHLB stock .................... 496 496 3,502 18,613 16,935 13,780 53,822
Short-term investments .. . ..............v..... 2,454 — — — — — 2,454
Total interest-earning assets ............... 55,966 15,114 33,545 109,601 58,005 60,164 332,395
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Savings deposits(3) . . ... 2,755 2,755 2,755 2,755 — 33,063 44,083
Money market deposits(4) ........... . ... .. 4,185 4,185 4,185 4,185 — 16,738 33,478
NOW deposits(3) «...ooovniinin i n, 2,201 2,201 2,201 2,201 — 26,418 35,222
Certificate accounts . ..........vovuirnrnnnn.. 16,815 27,360 34,962 17,416 5,922 —_ 102,475
FHLB advances ................c.ovinunnnn. 3,000 2,000 4,000 20,000 20,775 14,782 64,557
Subordinateddebt . ........ ... oL ool 3,093 — — — — — 3,093
Total interest-bearing liabilities ............ 32,049 38,501 48,103 46,557 26,697 91,001 282,908
Interest sensitivity gap(5) . ..... oo $23,917  $(23,387) $(14,558) $ 63,044 $31,308 $(30.837) $ 49,487
Cumulative interest sensitivity gap . ................ $23917 $§ 530 $(14,028) $ 49,016 380,324 $ 49,437
Cumulative interest sensitivity gap as a percentage of
totalassets .. ... ... ... 6.82% 0.15% (4.00)% 13.98% 22.91% 14.11%
Cumulative interest sensitivity gap as a percentage of
total interest-earning assets . ... ... ... 7.20% 0.16% 4.22)% 1475% 2417%  14.89%
Cumulative interest-earning assets as a percentage of
cumulative interest-bearing liabilities ............. 174.63% 100.75% 88.18% 129.67% 141.86% 117.49%

(1) Interest-earning assets are included in the period in which the balances are expected to be redeployed and/or repriced as a result of
anticipated prepayments, scheduled rate adjustments and contractual maturities.

(2) For the purposes of the gap analysis, the allowance for loan losses and net deferred loan costs and premium have been excluded.

(3) Regular savings and NOW account balances have 75% included in the over five-year timeframe; the balance is spread evenly within the
four intervals up to and including the one-to-three year period.

(4) Money market account balances have 50% included in the over five-year timeframe; the balance is spread evenly within the four
intervals up to and including the one-to-three year period.

(5) Interest sensitivity gap represents the difference between interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities.

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the method of analysis presented in the GAP table. For example,
although certain assets and liabilities may have similar maturities or periods to repricing, they may react in
different degrees to changes in market interest rates. Also, the interest rates on certain types of assets and
liabilities may fluctuate in advance of changes in market interest rates, while interest rates on other types may lag
behind changes in market rates. Additionally, certain assets such as adjustable-rate loans, have features that
restrict changes in interest rates both on a short-term basis and over the life of the asset. Further, in the event of
changes in interest rates, prepayment and early withdrawal levels would likely deviate significantly from those
assumed in calculating the table. Finally, the ability of many borrowers to service their adjustable-rate loans may
decrease in the event of an interest rate increase.
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Management of Credit Risk

Management considers credit risk to be an important risk factor affecting the financial condition and
operating results of the Company. The potential for loss associated with this risk factor is managed through a
combination of policies approved by the Company’s Board of Directors, the monitoring of compliance with these
policies, and the periodic reporting and evaluation of loans with problem characteristics. Policies relate to the
maximum amount that can be granted to a single borrower and such borrower’s related interests, the aggregate
amount of loans outstanding by type in relation to total assets and capital, loan concentrations, loan-to-collateral-
value ratios, approval limits and other underwriting criteria. Policies also exist with respect to the rating of loans,
when loans should be placed in a non-performing status, and the factors that should be considered in establishing
the Company’s allowance for loan losses.

Loan Approval Procedures and Authority. The Board of Directors annually approves the lending policies
and loan approval limits for the Bank. On an annual basis, the Board of Directors ratifies the use of all
independent appraisal firms that the Bank engages. Loans may be approved by loan officers, management, the
Loan Committee or the Board of Directors, depending on the type and size of the loan and the borrower’s
aggregate loan balances with the Bank. Where the borrower’s aggregate loan balances with the Bank are
$250,000 and below, individual loan officers (depending on lending limits) may approve loans, and where the
borrower’s aggregate loan balances with the Bank are between $250,001 and $1,000,000, the loan request must
be approved by the Loan Committee. The Loan Committee is made up of the Chief Executive Officer, Senior
Lending Officer, Commercial Loan officers, Commercial Loan Operations Manager and heads of Branch
Administration and Residential and Consumer Lending. Where the borrower’s aggregate borrowings with the
Bank exceed $1,000,000, the loan request must be approved by the Board of Directors. The Bank’s lending
policy allows, under certain circumstances, the ratification by the Board of Directors of loan commitments that
exceed $1,000,000.

The Bank requires an environmental site assessment to be performed by an independent professional for all
non-residential mortgage loans over $250,000. For all commercial real estate loans, the Bank must properly
evaluate environmental risks. It is also the Bank’s policy to require title and hazard insurance on all mortgage
loans. In addition, the Bank may require borrowers to make payments to a mortgage escrow account for the
payment of property taxes. Any exceptions to the Bank’s loan policies must be made in accordance with the
limitations set out in each policy. Typically, the exception authority ranges from the Vice-President of Branch
Administration to the Board of Directors, depending on the size and type of loan involved.

Delinquent Loans, Other Real Estate Owned and Classified Assets

Delinquent Loans. The Senior Lending Officer reviews the status of all delinquent loans on an on going
basis. The actions taken by the Bank with respect to delinquencies vary depending upon the nature of the loan
and the period of delinquency. Notices are generated by the Bank’s service bureau when a loan is fifteen days
past due. Collection letters are used in addition to and as a supplement to telephone calls. Where allowed, late
charges are assessed once a loan becomes past due the required number of days.

On loans secured by one- to four-family residences, the Bank attempts to work out a payment schedule with
the borrower in order to avoid foreclosure. If a satisfactory payment plan is not arranged, the Bank typically
refers the loan to legal counsel and foreclosure procedures are initiated after the 120th day of delinquency. At
any time prior to a sale of the property at foreclosure, foreclosure proceedings will be terminated if the borrower
and the Bank are able to work out a satisfactory payment plan. On loans secured by commercial real estate
properties, the Bank also seeks to reach a satisfactory payment plan so as to avoid foreclosure. If a satisfactory
payment plan is not arranged, the Bank typically refers the loan to legal counsel for foreclosure after the loan
becomes 120 days past due. Prior to any foreclosure, the Bank requires an updated appraisal of the property.

Other Real Estate Owned. Property acquired through foreclosure or acceptance of a deed in lieu of
foreclosure is classified in the Bank’s financial statements as other real estate owned (“OREQO”). When a
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property is placed in OREO, the excess of the loan balance over the estimated fair value is charged to the
allowance for loan losses. Estimated fair value usually represents the sales price a buyer would be willing to pay
on the basis of current market conditions, including normal loan terms from other financial institutions, less
estimated costs to sell the property. Management inspects alil OREQ properties periodically. When a decline in
estimated fair value of a property is deemed to have taken place, management establishes an allowance for such
decline by a charge to income. The adequacy of the allowance for OREO is evaluated by management and
reviewed with the Loan Committee on a quarterly basis, taking into consideration each property in the portfolio
and current real estate market conditions. At June 30, 2003, there was no OREO property held by the Bank.

Classified Assets. Consistent with regulatory guidelines, the Bank provides for the classification of loans
and other assets considered to be of lesser quality. Such ratings coincide with the “Substandard,” “Doubtful” and
“Loss” classifications used by regulators in their examination of financial institutions. Generally, an asset is
considered Substandard if it is inadequately protected by the current net worth and paying capacity of the
obligors and/or the collateral pledged. Substandard assets include those characterized by the distinct possibility
that the insured financial institution will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected. Assets classified
as Doubtful have all the weaknesses inherent in assets classified Substandard with the added characteristic that
the weaknesses present make collection in full, on the basis of currently existing facts, highly questionable and
improbable. Assets classified as Loss are those considered uncollectible and of such little value that their
continuance as assets without the establishment of a specific loss reserve and/or charge-off is not warranted.
Assets which do not currently expose the insured financial institution to sufficient risk to warrant classification in
one of the aforementioned categories but otherwise possess weaknesses are designated “Special Mention.”

When the Bank classifies problem assets as either Substandard or Doubtful, it establishes allocated
valuation allowances or “loss reserves” in an amount deemed prudent by management. Allocated allowances
represent loss allowances that have been established to recognize the inherent risk associated with lending
activities, but which, unlike specific allowances, have not been allocated to particular problem assets. When the
Bank classifies problem assets as “Loss,” it is required either to establish a specific allowance for losses equal to
100% of the amount of assets so classified, or to charge-off such amount. For such loans that are also classified
as impaired, an allowance is established when the collateral value of the impaired loans is lower than the carrying
value of that loan. The Bank’s determination as to the classification of its assets and the amount of its valuation
allowance is subject to review by its regulatory agencies, which can order the establishment of additional general
or specific loss allowances. The Bank reviews its portfolio monthly to determine whether any assets require
classification in accordance with applicable regulations.

On the basis of management’s review of its assets as of June 30, 2005, the Bank had classified a total of

$831,000 of its loans and other assets as Substandard and $90,000 of loans and other assets as Doubtful, and no
loans or other assets were classified as Loss.
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Non-Performing Assets. The table below sets forth the amounts and categories of non-performing assets in
the Bank’s loan portfolio. Loans are placed on non-accrual status when the collection of principal and/or interest
become doubtful. Foreclosed assets include assets acquired in settlement of loans.

June 30,
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
(Dollars in Thousands)
Non-accruing loans:
One- to-four-family residential ........................ $— $— $— $215 $122
Commercial and multi-family real estate .. ............... — — — 169 —
CONSUMET . .. vttt e et e e — — 12 — 11
Commercial business loans ........................... 90 — 297 — 16
Total ... 90+ — 309 384 149
Accruing loans delinquent more than 90 days:
One- to four-family residential . . ............... ... .... — — — 198 —
Commercial and multi-family real estate . ................ — — — — —
COoNSUMETr . ..ot e e — — — 71 —
Total ... — — — 269 —
Foreclosed assets ..., — — — — —
Total non-performing assets ... .............. .o .. $ 90 §$— $309 $653 $149
Total as a percentage of total assets ......................... 0.03% 0.00% 0.10% 0.24% 0.06%

In addition, the Bank had troubled debt restructurings (which involve forgiving a portion of interest or
principal on any loans or making loans at a rate materially less than that of market rates) that amounted to
$16,000 at June 30, 2001. There were no troubled debt restructurings at June 30, 2005, 2004, 2003 or 2002.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is established through provisions for loan losses based on management’s on-
going evaluation of the risks inherent in the Bank’s loan portfolio. The allowance for loan losses is maintained at
an amount management considers adequate to cover estimated losses in its loan portfolio which are deemed
probable and estimable based on information currently known to management. While the Bank believes that,
based on information currently available, that it has established adequate allowances for losses on loans, there
can be no assurance that the level of allowance will be sufficient to cover loan losses or that future adjustments to
the allowance will not be necessary if economic and/or other conditions differ substantially from the'economic
and other conditions considered by the Bank in evaluating the adequacy of the current level of the allowance.

The allowance for loan losses consists of allocated, general and unallocated components.

The allocated component of the allowance relates to loans that are individually evaluated for impairment
and classified as either substandard, doubtful or loss in accordance with the Bank’s internal grading system. The
Bank generally evaluates individually commercial, commercial real estate, construction and delinquent
residential loans for impairment. A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it
is probable that the Bank will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due
according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Factors considered by management in determining
impairment include payment status, collateral value, and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and
interest payments when due. Management determines the significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls
on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower,
including the length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower’s prior payment record, and the amount
of the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed. Impairment is measured on a loan-by-loan basis
using the fair value of existing collateral and a specific allowance amount is allocated.
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The general component of the allowance is determined using a formula-based approach applied to groups of
loans that possess similar risk characteristics. The Ievel of allowance allocated to each group is then determined
by management applying a loss factor that estimates the amount of probable loss inherent in each category. The
assigned loss factor is based on an assessment on the probability of loss due to the following risk factors: (i)
historical loss experience; (ii) the risk characteristics of the types of loans in the portfolio; (iii) growth of the loan
portfolio; (iv) geographic and large borrower concentrations; (v) current regional economic and real estate
market conditions that could affect the ability of borrowers to repay; (vi) the value of underlying collateral; and
(vil) trends in loan delinquencies.

A portion of the allowance for loan losses is not allocated to any specific category of the loan portfolio. This
unallocated portion, which historically has not represented more than 15% of the aggregate allowance amount,
takes into consideration the nature of the loan loss estimation process and the variability in the risk factors
discussed above. The evaluation of the inherent loss resulting from these factors involves a higher degree of
uncertainty because they are not identified with specific problem loans or portfolio categories. When an
evaluation of these conditions signifies a change in the level of risk, the Bank adjusts the unallocated portion of
the allowance. Although the unallocated portion of the allowance is provided to absorb losses in excess of the
amounts allocated to specific lending categories, both allocated and unallocated components are available to
absorb losses in any loan category.

The allowance for loan losses increased $373,000 to $2.5 million at June 30, 2005 consistent with this year’s
loan growth. For the year ended June 30, 2005, the Bank’s provision for loan losses was $427,000 compared with
$429,000 for the year ended June 30, 2004. The allowance for loan losses as a percentage of total loans was .90%
at June 30, 2005, consistent with the June 30, 2004 percentage of .90%. At June 30, 2005, there were $90,000 in
nonperforming assets, or 0.03% of total assets, while there were no nonperforming assets at June 30, 2004.

The following table sets forth activity in the Bank’s allowance for loan losses for the years indicated.

Year Ended June 30,
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
(Dollars in Thousands)
Balance at beginningof year . ......... ... . ... ... ... $2,133 $1,745 §$1,258 § 974 § 802
Charge-offs:
One- to four-family residential ........................ — 8 — — —
Commercial and muliti-family realestate ................ — — — — 58
L7071 111340 1=) (PN 11 46 9 45 12
Commercial businessloans ........................... 57 53 102 62 7
Total charge-offs ......... ... .. .. ... .. ..., 68 107 111 107 77
Recoveries:
One- to four-family residential ........................ — 8 — — —
CONSUMET .« . .ottt et e e e e 14 7 27 21 9
Commercial business loans ............... .. ... ...... — 51 1 40 22
Total recOVeries . ..., 14 66 28 61 31
Netcharge-offs .. ... .. .. .. i 54 41 83 46 46
Provision forloanlosses ........... .. .. .. .. L. 427 429 570 330 218
Balanceatendofyear ..........c.coiiin it $2,506 $2,133 $1,745 $1,258 §$ 974
Percentage of net charge-offs during the year to average loans
outstanding during theyear ........ .. .. ... ... .. .. ...... 0.02% 0.02% 0.05% 0.03% 0.04%
Percentage of net charge-offs during the year to average non-
performing assets .. .......... i 78.26% 23.50% 21.75% 14.57% 15.69%
Percentage of allowance for loan losses to loans at end of year . .. 090% 090% 096% 0.83% 0.79%
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The distribution of the Bank’s allowance for losses on loans at the dates indicated is summarized in the table
below. For the purposes of this table, the unallocated portion of the allowance for losses has been dxsmbuted ona
weighted average basis to the individual loan categories listed in the table.

June 30,
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent
of Loans of Loans of Loans of Loans of Loans

Amount ineach Amount ineach Amount  in each Amount ineach Amount ineach
of Loan Category of Loan Category ofLoan Category ofLoan Category ofLoan Category
Loss to Total Loss to Total Loss to Total Loss to Total Loss to Total

Allowance Loans Allowance Loans Allowance Loans Allowance Loans Allowance Loans

(Dollars in Thousands)

One-to four-family

residential ...... $ 445 5181% § 491 55.11% $ 367 53.54% § 321 55.13%  $250 53.62%
o Residential
construction . ., .. 13 1.46 13 0.61 2 0.09 3 0.68 2 0.65

- Commercial and
multi-family real

E— estate .......... 1,081 24.69 857 2244 704 22.96 487 24.88 361 25.12
Commercial
construction . . . .. 255 444 218 4.29 258 6.58 124 4.28 78 3.16
Home equity ...... 114 7.90 116 8.19 92 8.50 57 6.63 53 7.37
Consumer loans . . .. 11 0.42 11 0.49 20 0.85 16 1.24 22 1.87
Commercial business
loans .......... 587 9.28 427 8.87 302 7.48 250 7.16 208 8.21
Total ........ $2,506 100.00%  $2,133 100.00%  $1,745 100.00%  $1,258 100.00%  $974 100.00%

Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices

e The Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto presented herein have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, which require the
measurement of financial position and operating results in terms of historical dollar amounts without considering

— the changes in the relative purchasing power of money over time due to inflation. The impact of inflation is
reflected in the increased cost of the Company’s operations. Unlike industrial companies, nearly all of the assets
and liabilities of the Company are monetary in nature. As a result, interest rates have a greater impact on the

Company’s performance than do the effects of general levels of inflation. Interest rates do not necessarily move

in the same direction or to the same extent as the price of goods and services.
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COMPARISON OF OPERATING RESULTS FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED
JUNE 30, 2005 AND JUNE 30, 2004

The Company’s results of operations depend primarily on its net interest income, which is the difference
between the income earned on the Company’s loan and securities portfolios and its cost of funds, consisting of
the interest paid on deposits and borrowings. Results of operations are also affected by the Company’s provision
for loan losses, gains and losses from sales of securities and loans, fee income and non-interest expenses. The
Company’s non-interest expenses consist principally of compensation and employee benefits, occupancy,
equipment and data processing, and other operating expenses. Results of operations are also significantly affected
by general economic and competitive conditions, changes in interest rates, as well as government policies and
actions of regulatory authorities. Future changes in applicable law, regulations or government policies may
materially affect the Company.

Net income for the year ended June 30, 2005 was $2.1 million compared with $1.8 million for the year
ended June 30, 2004, an increase of $270,000, or 14.6%. This year’s growth in net income over last year was
primarily attributable to an increase of $634,000, or 6.0%, in net interest income. The provision for loan losses
was $2,000 lower than last year. Total non-interest expense increased $82,000, or less than 1% higher than last
year, while total non-interest income, led by lower gains from loan sales, was $60,000 lower. Earnings per share
were $1.29 per share (basic) and $1.27 per share (diluted) for the year ended June 30, 2005 compared with $1.14
per share (basic) and $1.12 per share (diluted) for the year ended June 30, 2004. The return on average
stockholders’ equity improved to 8.12% for the year ended June 30, 2005 from 7.66% last year, The return on
average assets was 0.64% and 0.61% for the years ended June 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Net Interest Income

Net interest income represents the difference between interest income on interest-earning assets and interest
expense on interest-bearing liabilities. Net interest income also depends on the relative amounts of interest-
earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities and the interest rates earned or paid on them.

Net interest income increased $634,000, or 6.0%, due largely to growth of $26.8 million, or 9.4%, in
average earning assets over last year. Partially offsetting this increase to net interest income was a decrease in the
Bank’s interest rate spread (the difference between yields earned on earning assets and rates paid on deposits and
borrowings) from 3.45% for the year ended June 30, 2004 to 3.29% for the year ended June 30, 2005. The
interest rate margin (net interest income divided by average eaming assets) also decreased from 3.74% last year
to 3.62% this year.




Average Balance Sheet. The following table presents, for the periods indicated, the total dollar amount of
interest income from average interest-earning assets and the resultant yields, as well as the interest expense on
average interest-bearing liabilities, expressed both in dollars and rates. No tax equivalent adjustments were made.
All average balances are monthly average balances. Non-accruing loans, if any, have been included in the table.

Year Ended June 30,
2005 T 2004
Interest Interest
Average  Earned/ Yield/ Average Earned/ Yield/
Balance Paid Rate Balance Paid Rate

(Dollars in Thousands)
Interest-earning assets:

Loans(1) ... ... .. $255,014 $14,449 5.67% $213,935 $12,160 5.68%
Securities(2) ... 55,064 2,708 4.92 66,623 3,403 5.11
Short-term investments . .................... 1,924 37 1.92 4,644 45 0.97
Total interest-earning assets ............. 312,002 17,194 551 285202 15,608 5.47
Non-interest-earning assets .. .................... _18_22 ﬂ
Total aSSets ... .. v $330,203 $302,797
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Savings deposits .. ........ . .ol $ 45,526 236 0.52 $ 45,851 225 0.49
Money market deposits . .................... 35,133 500 142 29,091 358 1.23
NOW accounts .............ccouuiiinienn... 28,652 47 0.16 29,806 48 0.16
Certificates of deposit . ..................... 93,909 2,376 2.53 88,721 2,117 2.39
Borrowings and subordinated debt ............ 62,415 2,765 4.37 50,514 2,224 433
Total interest-bearing liabilities .......... 265,635 5,924 222 243983 4972 202
Demand deposits .. ... 36,887 ’ 34,282
Other non-interest bearing liabilities .............. 1,620 419
Stockholders’ equity ......... ... ... .. .. .. ..., 26,001 24,113
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity ... $330,203 $302,797
Netinterest iNCOME . . ..o o tv v ee e $11,270 $10,636
Net interest rate spread .. .........couvevuern.. .. 3.29% 3.45%
Netearning assets ... .........vvuurnreierrnon. $ 46,367 $ 41,219
Net yield on average interest-earning assets ......... 3.62% 3.74%
Average interest-earning assets to average interest-
bearing liabilities . ......... ... .. ... ... ... .. 117.46% 116.89%

(1) Calculated net of deferred loan costs and premium and allowance for loan losses.
(2) Securities include securities available for sale and held to maturity and FHLB stock.
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Rate/Volume Analysis. The following table presents the approximate dollar amount of changes in interest
income and interest expense for major components of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities. It
distinguishes between the changes related to outstanding balances and those due to the changes in interest rates.
For each category of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities, information is provided on changes
attributable to (i) changes in volume (i.e., changes in volume multiplied by old rate) and (ii) changes in rate (i.e.,
changes in rate multiplied by old volume). For purposes of this table, changes attributable to both rate and
volume, which cannot be segregated, have been allocated proportionately to the change due to volume and the
change due to rate.

Years Ended June 30,
2005 vs. 2004

Increase (Decrease) Total

ue t
Due to Increase

Volume Rate  (Decrease)

(Dollars in Thousands)
Interest and dividend income:

O8NS L. 82311 § (22) 82,289
Securities . .....cv i P (572) (123) (695)
Short-term INVeStMENES .« ittt it ittt e it (36) 28 )
Tl L. 1,703 117y 1,586
Interest expense:
Savings deposits . . . ... e 2) 13 11
Money market deposits .. ... ... 81 61 142
NOW aCCOUNES .« . v vt i ottt e e e e e e e e e e e H — (1)
Certificates of deposit .. ...ttt 129 130 259
Borrowings and subordinated debt ........ ... .. L 521 20 541
<371 P 728 224 952
Net IntEreSt iNCOMIE .+ v o vt vt ettt e et e e e e e e e $ 975 $(341) $ 634

Interest and Dividend Income. Total interest and dividend income increased by $1.6 million, or 10.2%, to
$17.2 million for the year ended June 30, 2005 compared with the year ended June 30, 2004. The average loan
portfolio increased $41.1 million, or 19.2%, which increased interest income, while the yield on loans decreased
just one basis point to 5.67%. The average securities portfolio balance decreased $11.6 million, or 17.3%, and the
yield on the securities portfolio declined 19 basis points to 4.92%, which reduced interest and dividend income
compared with last year. Certain investments within the Bank’s portfolio that matured, were prepaid or called
were reinvested in lower yielding investments.

Interest Expense. Interest expense on deposits increased $411,000, or 15.0%, for the year ended June 30,
2005, to $3.2 million. The higher interest expense reflects an increase in average interest-bearing deposits of $9.8
million, or 5.0%, most of which was in higher cost certificate of deposits and money market deposits. The
average cost of deposits increased 13 basis points to 1.55%, which also increased interest expense. The higher
average cost reflects the volume growth in the higher deposit cost categories and the competitive market that the
Bank operates in for certain deposits.

Interest expense on borrowings and subordinated debt increased by $541,000, or 24.3%. Average
sorrowings from the FHLB and subordinated debt during the year ended June 30, 20035 increased $11.9 million,
r 23.6%, compared to last year. The cost of funds on these borrowings increased from 4.33% to 4.37% this year.
"orrowings are generally used to manage liquidity and asset-liability management performance of the Bank.
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The Bank intends to continue to emphasize core-based deposit growth for future funding requirements.
Based on management’s expectations for future loan growth, however, the Bank is expected to rely more on
higher-cost retail certificates and borrowings from the FHLB to meet its future funding requirements, An
increase in market interest rates and continued competition from other financial institutions together with the
aforementioned growth in retail certificates and borrowings could cause further tightening in the Bank’s interest
rate spread. Management anticipates, however, that the effect on net interest income from future loan growth
would be sufficient to offset the effect on net interest income from a decline in the Bank’s interest rate spread.

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses decreased by $2,000, from $429,000 for the year ended June 30, 2004 to
$427,000 for the comparable period in 2005. The allowance for loan losses as a percentage of total loans was
90% at June 30, 2005, the same level as June 30, 2004. Nonperforming assets totaled just $90,000, or 0.03% of
total assets at June 30, 2003, while there were no nonperforming assets at June 30, 2004, While management
believes that, based on information currently available, the Bank’s allowance for loan losses is sufficient to cover
losses inherent in its loan portfolio at this time, no assurances can be given that the level of the Bank’s allowance
will be sufficient to cover future loan losses incurred by the Bank or that future adjustments to the allowance will
not be necessary if economic and/or other conditions differ substantially from the economic and other conditions
considered by management in evaluating the adequacy of the current level of the allowance.

Non-Interest Income

Total non-interest income for the year ended June 30, 2005 decreased $60,000 from last year to $1.7
million. The decrease was due mostly to lower gains from the sale of residential real estate loans, servicing
retained, by $151,000. Partially offsetting the lower loan sale gains were higher customer service fees due to
increased debit card income, higher gains from the sales of securities, and higher other income due to increased
financial service fees from a higher level of sales at the Financial Services Center at Strata Bank.

Non-Interest Expense

Total non-interest expense increased $82,000, or less than 1.0%, to $9.4 million for the year ended June 30,
2005 compared with last year. Salaries and benefits increased $264,000, or 5.4%, due largely to increased
staffing in the residential and commercial loan origination areas of the Bank, partially offset by a decrease in
supplemental retirement plan expense due to a change in estimate recorded in the prior year. Occupancy expense
increased $11,000, or 1.1%, due to contractual increases in rent obligations and higher real estate taxes. Data
processing expense increased $46,000, or 6.1%, due to higher processing volumes and enhancements in the
Bank’s customer oriented systems and software, Equipment expense decreased $43,000, or 9.4%, due mostly to
lower depreciation expense as older capital assets reached their depreciation lives. Professional fees decreased
$76,000, or 16.2%, due to lower legal expenses compared to last year, which included higher legal fees
associated with the 2003 proxy filing, annual meeting of stockholders and other matters. Advertising
expenditures were lower this year by $19,000, or 6.0%. Other operating expense decreased $101,000, as many
general and administrative expense categories were level with or slightly below last year's levels.

The operating efficiency ratio {total non-interest expense divided by the sum of net interest income plus

total non-interest income) for the year ended June 30, 2005 was 72.15%, an improvement over the 74.82% for
year ended June 30, 2004.
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Rate/Volume Analysis. The following table presents the approximate dollar amount of changes in interest
income and interest expense for major components of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities. It
distinguishes between the changes related to outstanding balances and those due to the changes in interest rates.
For each category of interest-eaming assets and interest-bearing liabilities, information is provided on changes
attributable to (i) changes in volume (i.e., changes in volume multiplied by old rate) and (ii) changes in rate (i.e.,
changes in rate multiplied by old volume). For purposes of this table, changes attributable to both rate and
volume, which cannot be segregated, have been allocated proportionately to the change due to volume and the
change due to rate.

Years Ended June 30,
2005 vs, 2004

Increase (Decrease) Total

_ﬂﬂ_ Tncrease
Volume Rate (Decrease)

(Dollars in Thousands)
Interest and dividend income:

LOaNS oo e $2,311 $ (22) $2,289
SECUTILIES .. ottt (572) (123) (695)
Short-term INVESIMENtS . . . ... o e (36) 28 &)
Total .. 1,703 (117) 1,586
Interest expense:
Savings depoSItS . . . .ottt (2) 13 11
Money market deposifs ... ... e 81 61 142
NOW 8CCOUNLS . ..ottt ettt e et 1 — €Y
Certificates of deposit . ....... ... i e 129 130 259
Borrowings and subordinated debt ....... ... .. L L 521 20 541
Total . e 728 224 952
NetINterest INCOME . . ...ttt e et e e e e $ 975 $(341) $ 634

Interest and Dividend Income. Total interest and dividend income increased by $1.6 million, or 10.2%, to
$17.2 million for the year ended June 30, 2005 compared with the year ended June 30, 2004. The average loan
portfolio increased $41.1 million, or 19.2%, which increased interest income, while the yield on loans decreased
just one basis point to 5.67%. The average securities portfolio balance decreased $11.6 million, or 17.3%, and the
yield on the securities portfolio declined 19 basis points to 4.92%, which reduced interest and dividend income
compared with last year. Certain investments within the Bank’s portfolio that matured, were prepaid or called
were reinvested in lower yielding investments.

Interest Expense. Interest expense on deposits increased $411,000, or 15.0%, for the year ended June 30,
2005, to $3.2 million. The higher interest expense reflects an increase in average interest-bearing deposits of $9.8
million, or 5.0%, most of which was in higher cost certificate of deposits and money market deposits. The
average cost of deposits increased 13 basis points to 1.55%, which also increased interest expense. The higher
average cost reflects the volume growth in the higher deposit cost categories and the competitive market that the
Bank operates in for certain deposits.

Interest expense on borrowings and subordinated debt increased by $541,000, or 24.3%. Average
borrowings from the FHLB and subordinated debt during the year ended June 30, 2005 increased $11.9 million,
or 23.6%, compared to last year. The cost of funds on these borrowings increased from 4.33% to 4.37% this year.
Borrowings are generally used to manage liquidity and asset-liability management performance of the Bank.
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The Bank intends to continue to emphasize core-based deposit growth for future funding requirements.
Based on management’s expectations for future loan growth, however, the Bank is expected to rely more on
higher-cost retail certificates and borrowings from the FHLB to meet its future funding requirements. An
increase in market interest rates and continued competition from other financial institutions together with the
aforementioned growth in retail certificates and borrowings could cause further tightening in the Bank’s interest
rate spread. Management anticipates, however, that the effect on net interest income from future loan growth
would be sufficient to offset the effect on net interest income from a decline in the Bank’s interest rate spread.

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses decreased by $2,000, from $429,000 for the year ended June 30, 2004 to
$427,000 for the comparable period in 2005. The allowance for loan losses as a percentage of total loans was
.90% at June 30, 2005, the same level as June 30, 2004. Nonperforming assets totaled just $90,000, or 0.03% of
total assets at June 30, 2005, while there were no nonperforming assets at June 30, 2004. While management
believes that, based on information currently available, the Bank’s allowance for loan losses is sufficient to cover
losses inherent in its loan portfolio at this time, no assurances can be given that the level of the Bank’s allowance
will be sufficient to cover future loan losses incurred by the Bank or that future adjustments to the atlowance will
not be necessary if economic and/or other conditions differ substantially from the economic and other conditions
considered by management in evaluating the adequacy of the current level of the allowance.

Non-Interest Income

Total non-interest income for the year ended June 30, 2005 decreased $60,000 from last year to $1.7
million. The decrease was due mostly to lower gains from the sale of residential real estate loans, servicing
retained, by $151,000. Partially offsetting the lower loan sale gains were higher customer service fees due to
increased debit card income, higher gains from the sales of securities, and higher other income due to increased
financial service fees from a higher level of sales at the Financial Services Center at Strata Bank.

Non-Interest Expense

Total non-interest expense increased $82,000, or less than 1.0%, to $9.4 million for the year ended June 30,
2005 compared with last year. Salaries and benefits increased $264,000, or 5.4%, due largely to increased
staffing in the residential and commercial loan origination areas of the Bank, partially offset by a decrease in
supplemental retirement plan expense due to a change in estimate recorded in the prior year, Occupancy expense
increased $11,000, or 1.1%, due to contractual increases in rent obligations and higher real estate taxes. Data
processing expense increased $46,000, or 6.1%, due to higher processing volumes and enhancements in the
Bank’s customer oriented systems and software. Equipment expense decreased $43,000, or 9.4%, due mostly to
lower depreciation expense as older capital assets reached their depreciation lives. Professional fees decreased
$76,000, or 16.2%, due to lower legal expenses compared to last year, which included higher legal fees
associated with the 2003 proxy filing, annual meeting of stockholders and other matters. Advertising
expenditures were lower this year by $19,000, or 6.0%. Other operating expense decreased $101,000, as many
general and administrative expense categories were level with or slightly below last year’s levels.

The operating efficiency ratio (total non-interest expense divided by the sum of net interest income.plus
total non-interest income) for the year ended June 30, 2005 was 72.15%, an improvement over the 74.82% for
year ended June 30, 2004.
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Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes increased by $224,000 to $1.1 million for the year ended June 30, 2005
compared to last year due mostly to this year’s higher level of pre-tax income. The effective income tax rate was
33.7% for the year ended June 30, 2005, slightly higher than the 31.6% last year. The effective tax rates reflect
the utilization by the Company of certain tax preference items such as bank-owned life insurance, dividends
received deductions and security corporation subsidiaries to reduce the statutory corporate tax rates. The increase
in effective tax rate for the year reflects the reduction in investment securities held by the security corporations
and resulting decrease in interest income at the security corporations. The increase in effective tax rates also
reflects the increase in loans held by the Bank and resulting increase in interest income at the Bank. Since the
Bank and the security corporations file separate state tax returns and the Bank’s statutory state tax rate is 10.50%
compared to 1.32% for the security corporations, the result of the shift in income to the Bank was an overall
increase in the effective tax rate for the Company.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Service Bancorp, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Service Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiary as
of June 30, 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in stockholders’ equity
and cash flows for the years then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Service Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiary as of June 30, 2005 and 2004, and the results of
their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Tt Conpouy, PC.

Boston, Massachusetts
July 27, 2005
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SERVICE BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Dollars in Thousands, Except per Share Amounts)

ASSETS
Cashand due from banks ... ... . i
SOt~ te M INVESTMETILS & . . .ttt it ettt e et et ettt et e et i

Total cash and cash equivalents ........... ... .. ... .. . i i

Securities available for sale, at fair value . ....... .. . ... .
Securities held to maturity, atamortized COSt .. ... . i
Federal Home Loan Bank stock, at coSt . . ... .. i e

LOaNS . v e
Less allowance for [0an 10SS€S . ... ..ot e

Looans, met . .. e e

Banking premises and equipment, NEt . ... .......uitt ittt
Accrued interest receivable . .. ... .
Net deferred tax asset .. ... ...t e
Bank-owned life insurance, at cash surrender value . ............... . ... ...,
ONET A8 v o vttt

DEPOSIES .« . ot
BOTTOWINES . o
Subordinated debt . ... ... ..
Other 1abilities . .. .o e e

Total Habilities ... e e e

Commitments and contingencies (Note 13)

Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $.01 par value, 5,000,000 shares authorized, none issued .........
Common stock, $.01 par value, 12,000,000 shares authorized, 1,712,630 shares

ISSURd .« . ot

Additional paid-in capital ...... ... . . e
Retained earnings . ...... ... ..
Accumulated other comprehensive income . ...... ... .. ... i L.
Treasury stock, at cost (77,345 and 52,251 shares, respectively) . ................
Unearned ESOP shares (11,466 and 17,905 shares, respectively) ................
Unearned RRP shares (4,744 and 10,025 shares, respectively) ..................

Total stockholders’ equity . ...... ... ... . i
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity ........ ... ... .. .. ... .....

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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June 30,
2005 2004

$ 7307 $ 9,299
2,454 3,903

9,761 13,202

46,500 47,181
4,155 9,249
3,908 2,936

277,104 237,469
(2,506) (2,133)

274,598 235,336

3,794 3,632
1,465 1,332

836 604
4,683 4,498
902 703

$350,602 $318,673

$254,805 $239,148
64,557 50,299
3,093 3,093
1,632 1,211

324,087 293,751

17 17
7,930 7,760
19,480 17,363
480 553
(1,250) (527)
(115) (179)
(27) (65)

26,515 24,922
$350,602 $318,673




SERVICE BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

Years Ended June 30,
2005 2004
Interest and dividend income:
Interest and fees 0N IOANS . . ... ottt i $ 14449 § 12,160
Interest and dividends on securities and Federal Home Loan Bank stock ....... 2,708 3,403
Interest on short-term INVEStMENS . ... ... ottt et e 37 45
Total interest and dividend income .. . ... oot 17,194 15,608
Interest expense: '
Interest on deposits ... ..ottt e 3,159 2,748
Interest On DOrTOWINGS . . ...ttt e e 2,600 2,187
Interest on subordinated debt . ... ... 165 37
Total INterest EXPEMSE . . o v v v et et et e 5,924 4,972
Net INteresSt INCOIMIE . . vttt ettt e e et e et e e e e 11,270 10,636
Provision for 10am 108SeS . .. .. ot e 427 429
Net interest income, after provision for loanlosses .. .................. 10,843 10,207
Non-interest income:
CUStOmMET SEIVICE T8ES . .. oottt 1,047 1,036
Netgainonloansales ........ ... oo 75 226
Net gain on SeCUrities Sales ... ... . vttt i e 110 93
Other INCOMIE . . . .ottt e e e e e 495 432
Total non-1nterest iNCOME . .. ... o i e e 1,727 1,787
Non-interest expense:
Salaries and employee benefits ........ ... ... . i 5,179 4,915
OCCUPANICY &+ . vt e et ettt e e e e e e et e e e 1,026 1,015
Data ProCesSINg . .o .ottt e 795 749
EqQUIpment .. ..o e 414 457
Professional fees ... ... . e 392 468
AdVEItiSING ..o e 296 315
Other general and administrative . ... ........ .ttt e, 1,275 1,376
Total NON-iNterest EXPENSE . .. ...ttt n i 9,377 9,295
Income before INCOME tAXES . . o\t vttt et et e e e e 3,193 2,699
Provision for INCOME tAXES . . ..t v i et i e e e e e 1,076 852
NELINCOME . . oot i et e e e e e e e e e $ 2,117 $ 1,847
Weighted average shares outstanding (basic) ........ ... .. ... .. . .. 1,637,551 1,616,132
Weighted average shares outstanding (diluted) ........... ... ... ... .. ... ... 1,660,778 1,652,311
Earnings per share (Dasic) ... ...ttt $ 1.29 % 1.14
Earnings per share (diluted) ........ ... .. . $ 127 % 1.12

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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SERVICE BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Years Ended June 38, 2005 and 2004
(Dollars in Thousands)

Accumulated

Additional Other Unearned Unearned

Common Paid-in  Retained Comprehensive Treasury ESOP

RRP

Stock Capital Earnings Income Stock Shares Shares Total
Balance at June 30,2003 ...... $ 17  $7,502 $15,516 $1,475 $ (631) $(243) $(125) $23,511
Comprehensive income:
Netincome ............ — —_ 1,847 — _— —_ — 1,847
Net unrealized loss on
securities available for
sale, net of taxes and
reclassification
adjustment ........... — — — (922) — — — (922)
Total comprehensive
income .......... 925
Common stock held by ESOP
released and committed to be
released (6,440 shares) ... .. — 107 — — — 64 — 171
Purchase of treasury stock
(2,402 shares) ............ —_ — — 60 — — (60)
Stock option exercises (17,497
shares) .................. — (27) — — 164 — — 137
Income tax benefit on options
exercised ................ — 153 — — — — — 153
Amortization of RRP stock
(8,336 shares) ............ — 25 — —_ —_ — 60 85
Balance at June 30,2004 ... ... 17 7,760 17,363 553 (527 (179) (65) 24,922
Comprehensive income:
Netincome ............ — — 2,117 — — — — 2,117
Net unrealized loss on
securitles available for
sale, net of taxes and
reclassification
adjustment . .......... — — — (73) — — — (73)
Total comprehensive
income .......... 2,044
Common stock held by ESOP
released and committed to be
released (6,439 shares) ... .. — 109 — — — 64 — 173
Purchase of treasury stock
(30,094 shares) ........... -— — — — (773) — — (773)
Stock option exercises (5,000
shares) .................. — (13) — — 50 — — 37
Income tax benefit on options
exercised ................ — 31 — — — — — 31
Income tax benefit on RRP
stock ... —_ 24 — — —_ — — 24
Amortization of RRP stock
(5,281 shares) ............ — 19 — — — — 38 57
Balance at June 30,2005 ...... $ 17  $7,930 $19,480 $ 480 $(1,250) $(115) $ (27) $26,515

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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SERVICE BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Dollars in Thousands)

Years Ended June 30,
2005 2004
Cash flows from operating activities:
Nt I OIIE .+ ottt et e e e e e e e e e e $ 2,117 $ 1,847
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Provision for loan 10sses . . .. .o o i e e 427 429
Net gain on Securities Sales . . ... oo e (110) (93)
Netgainonloan sales . .. ... .ottt (75) (226)
Net amortization of SECUTItIes . . . ... .. .ot e e 138 211
Depreciation and amortization EXpense . ... .......ovueerneneinennenno.. 418 512
(Increase) decrease in accrued interestreceivable ......................... (133) 58
Net amortization of deferred loan costs and premiums ... .................. 280 348
Increase in cash surrender value of bank-owned life insurance ............... (185) (182)
Deferred tax benefit . ... ... .. .. e (194) (150)
Other, Mt . .o 452 510
Net cash provided by operating activities ........................... 3,135 3,264
Cash flows from investing activities:
Activity in securities available for sale:
Sales . e 4,619 8,751
Maturities, prepayments andcalls . ....... ... ... . i 11,463 12,660
PUrChases .. ... ...t (15,531) (16,505)
Activity in securities held to maturity:
Sl o e — 512
Maturities, prepaymentsandcalls .......... ... ... .. . i i 5,084 7,773
Net increase in loans, excluding loan purchases andsales ... .................... (45,029) (43,218)
Purchase of loans . ... ... e (200) (22,521)
Sale of 10ans . ... o e 5,335 9,774
Purchase of banking premises and equipment .............. .. ... i, (588) (767)
Purchase of Federal Home Loan Bank stock ........... ... .. ... ... .. ... ... (972) (988)
Investment in unconsolidated trust subsidiary ............ .. ... . ... ... — 93)
Net cash used by investing activities ............. ... i, (35,819) (44,622)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net increase (decrease) in deposits . . ... v vttt ittt e 15,657 (781)
Proceeds from Federal Home Loan Bank advances . ........................... 19,300 17,079
Repayment of Federal Home Loan Bank advances ............ ... ...... ... .. (5,042) (2,012)
Proceeds from subordinated debt ......... .. ... ... . — 3,033
Purchase of treasury Stock .. ... . . (773) (60)
Repayment of ESOPloan ....... .. .. 64 64
Stock OPHION €XEICISES .« . vttt et e et e 37 137
Net cash provided by financing activities ........... ... .. ... ....... 29,243 17,460
Net change in cash and cash equivalents .......... ... ... ... .. (3,441) (23,898)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year . .. ......... ... i 13,202 37,100
Cash and cash equivalents atend of year . ........ .. . i $ 9,761 $ 13,202
Supplementary information:
Interest paid on deposits . ... ..ottt e $ 3,147 $ 2,745
Interest paid on borrowings and subordinated debt . ......... .. .. ... ... oL 2,713 2.154
Income taxes paid, netof refunds ... ....... ... . .. . 1,088 965

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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SERVICE BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended June 30, 2005 and 2004

1. CORPORATE STRUCTURE

Service Bancorp, Inc. (the “Company”) is a Massachusetts corporation organized in August 1998 for the
purpose of owning all of the outstanding capital stock of Strata Bank (the “Bank”). The Company was organized
as a wholly-owned subsidiary of Service Bancorp, MHC (the “Mutual Company”), which is a Massachusetts-
chartered mutual holding company.

On October 7, 1998, the Company completed a public offering of 47% of the shares of its outstanding
common stock in a public offering to eligible depositors, employees, and members of the general public (the
“Offering”). The remaining 53% of the Company’s shares of common stock were issued to the Mutual Company.
Prior to that date, the Company had no assets or liabilities. As of June 30, 2005, the Mutual Company owned
55.5% of the Company’s outstanding common stock.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of presentation and consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned
subsidiary, the Bank, which includes the Bank’s wholly-owned subsidiaries, Medway Securities Corp. and
Franklin Village Security Corp., which engage in the purchase and sale of securities. All significant
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. During 2004, the Company
formed a wholly-owned subsidiary, Service Capital Trust I (“Trust I'"), which is presented on the equity method.
(Refer to Note 8 for a further discussion.)

Business and operating segments

The Company provides a variety of financial services to individuals and small businesses through its offices
in the Massachusetts counties of Norfolk, Middlesex and Worcester. Its primary deposit products are savings,
checking and term certificate accounts and its primary lending products are mortgage, consumer and commercial
loans.

Management evaluates the Company’s performance and allocates resources based on a single segment
concept. Accordingly, there are no separately identified operating segments for which discrete financial
information is available. The Company does not derive revenues from, or have assets located in, foreign
countries, nor does it derive revenues from any single customer that represents 10% or more of the Company’s
total revenues.

Use of estimates

In preparing financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities as of the date of the consolidated balance sheet and reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. A material estimate that is
particularly susceptible to significant change in the near term relates to the determination of the allowance for
loan losses.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the 2004 consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 2003
presentation.

44




SERVICE BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Cash equivalents

Cash equivalents include amounts due from banks and short-term investments. Short-term investments
consist primarily of federal funds sold, money market funds and other interest-bearing deposits which mature on
a daily basis.

Restrictions on cash and amounts due from banks

The Company is required to maintain average cash balances on hand or with the Federal Reserve Bank. At
June 30, 2005 and 2004, these reserve balances amounted to $3,395,000, and $3,544,000, respectively.

Securities

Debt securities that management has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as “held
to maturity” and recorded at amortized cost. All other securities are classified as “available for sale” and are
carried at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses excluded from earnings and reported in other
comprehensive income/loss.

Amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts on debt securities are computed using the interest
method. Declines in the fair value of securities below their cost that are deemed to be other than temporary are
reflected in earnings as realized losses.

In estimating other-than-temporary impairment losses, management considers: (i) the length of time and
extent to which fair value has been less than cost, (ii) the financial condition and near-term prospects of the
issuer, (iii) industry developments of the issuer and general economic conditions, (iv) the likelihood of a recovery
of the fair value of the securities in the near term, and (v) the intent and ability of the Company to retain its
investment in the issuer for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value.

Gains and losses on sales are recorded on the trade date and are computed using the specific identification
method.

Loans

The Company grants mortgage, consumer and commercial loans to its customers. A substantial portion of
the loan portfolio consists of mortgage loans in Norfolk County, Middlesex County and Worcester County. The
ability of the Company’s debtors to honor their contracts is dependent, among other factors, upon the local
economy and the local real estate market.

Loans, as reported, have been adjusted by the aliowance for loan losses and net deferred loan costs and
premiums.

Income on loans, including impaired loans, is recognized on the simple interest basis and is not accrued
when in the judgment of management the collectibility of the loan principal or interest becomes doubtful. Loans
delinquent 90 days or more are reviewed for placement on non-accrual status. Delinquent status is based on
contractual terms of the loan.

Net deferred loan costs and premiums are amortized over the contractual lives of the related loans using the
interest method.
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SERVICE BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the
Company will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the
contractual terms of the loan agreement. Factors considered by management in determining impairment include
payment status, collateral value, and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when
due. Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as
impaired. Management determines the significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-case
basis, taking into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the
length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower’s prior payment record, and the amount of the
shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed. Impairment is measured on a loan by loan basis using the
fair value of existing collateral.

Large groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans are collectively evaluated for impairment.
Accordingly, the Company does not separately identify individual consumer loans for impairment disclosures.

Allowance for loan losses

The allowance for loan losses is established as losses are estimated to have occurred through a provision for
loan losses charged to earnings. Loan losses are charged against the allowance when management believes the
uncollectibility of a loan balance is confirmed. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance.

The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management and is based upon
management’s periodic review of the collectibility of the loans in light of known and inherent risks in the nature
and volume of the loan portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrower’s ability to repay, estimated
value of any underlying collateral and prevailing economic conditions. This evaluation is inherently subjective as
it requires estimates that are susceptible to significant revision as more information becomes available.

The allowance consists of allocated, general and unallocated components, The allocated component relates to
loans that are classified as either doubtful, substandard or loss. For such loans that are also classified as impaired, an
allowance is established when the collateral value of the impaired loans is lower than the carrying value of that loan.
The general component covers non-classified loans and is based on historical loss experience adjusted for
qualitative factors. An unallocated component is maintained to cover uncertainties that could affect management’s
estimate of probable losses. The unallocated component of the allowance reflects the margin of imprecision inherent
in the underlying assumptions used in the methodologies for estimating losses in the portfolio.

Loan servicing rights

When loans are sold with servicing rights retained. the relative fair value of the servicing right asset is
capitalized and recorded in other assets. Fair value is based on a valuation model that calculates the present value
of the estimated future net servicing income. Capitalized servicing rights are amortized into non-interest income
in proportion to, and over the period of, the estimated future net servicing income of the loans being serviced.
Servicing rights are evaluated quarterly for impairment based upon the fair value of the rights as compared to
amortized cost.

Banking premises and equipment

Land is carried at cost. Buildings, leasehold improvements and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and amortization computed on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives
of the assets or the expected terms of the leases, if shorter.
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SERVICE BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Income taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are reflected at currently enacted income tax rates applicable to the period
in which the deferred tax assets or liabilities are expected to be realized or settled. As changes in tax laws or rates
are enacted, deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted accordingly through the provision for income taxes.
The Bank’s base amount of its federal income tax reserve for loan losses is a permanent difference for which
there is no recognition of a deferred tax liability. However, the loan loss allowance maintained for financial
reporting purposes is a temporary difference with allowable recognition of a related deferred tax asset, if it is
deemed realizable.

Stock compensation plans

The Company measures the unearned compensation cost, reflected as a reduction of stockholders’ equity,
for its 1999 Recognition and Retention Plan (“RRP”) based on the fair value of the stock at the grant date.
Compensation cost is recognized over the vesting period.

The Company measures compensation cost for its Amended and Restated 1999 Stock Option Plan using the
intrinsic value based method of accounting, whereby compensation cost is the excess, if any, of the quoted market
price of the stock at the grant date (or other measurement date) over the amount an employee must pay to acquire
the stock. Stock options issued under the Company’s Stock Option Plan have no intrinsic value at the grant date and
no compensation cost is recognized for them. Had compensation cost for the Company’s stock option plan been
determined using the fair value method based on the Black-Scholes option-pricing model at the grant dates, the
Company’s net income and earnings per share would have been reduced to the following amounts:

Years Ended June 30,
2005 2004

(Dollars in Thousands,
Except Per Share Amounts)

Netincome, asreported . . .. ...ttt $2,117 $1,847
Deduct: Total stock—based compensation expense determined
under the fair value method, netoftaxes .. ....... ... ... .. ... ... ... 38 57

Pro forma net iNCOMIE . . . ..ttt ittt e e e e e e e $2,079 $1,790
Earnings per share (basic):

ASTEPOTLEd . . oL $1.29 $ 114

Proforma .. ... e $ 127 $ 1.1
Earnings per share (diluted):

ASTEPOTtEd . . ot e $ 1.27 $ 1.12

Proforma ... ... $ 125 $ 1.08

|
|

Employee Stock Ownership Plan

Compensation expense is recognized based on the fair value of shares committed to be released to the
Employee Stock Ownership Plan (“ESOP”). All shares held by the ESOP that are released and committed to be
released are deemed outstanding for purposes of earnings per share calculations. The value of unearned shares to
be allocated to ESOP participants for future services not yet performed is reflected as a reduction of
stockholders’ equity.
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SERVICE BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Advertising costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred in each fiscal year.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share represents income available to common stockholders divided by the weighted-
average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share reflects additional
common shares (common stock equivalents) that would have been outstanding if dilutive potential common
shares had been issued, as well as any adjustment to income that would result from the assumed issuance.
Potential common shares that may be issued by the Company relate to outstanding stock options and unvested
stock granted under the RRP and are determined using the treasury stock method. Assumed conversion of the
outstanding dilutive stock options and unvested RRP stock would increase the shares outstanding but would not
require an adjustment to income as a result of the conversion.

Weighted average diluted shares outstanding have been calculated based on the following:

Years Ended June 30,
2005 2004
Weighted average shares outstanding ... ............ it 1,637,551 1,616,132
Effect of dilutive Stock Options . ... ... ..ot e 21,257 31,253
Effect of unvested shares of RRP stock . ... ... ... ... . .. . . . .. 1,970 4,926
Weighted average diluted shares outstanding ... ........ ... ... . oL 1,660,778 1,652,311

For the year ended June 30, 2005, an average of 1,000 stock options and no unvested shares of RRP stock
were anti-dilutive and therefore excluded from the earnings per share calculation. For the year ended June 30,
2004, an average of 350 stock options and no unvested shares of RRP stock were anti-dilutive and therefore
excluded from the earnings per share calculation.

Comprehensive income/loss

Accounting principles generally require that recognized revenue, expenses, gains and losses be included in
net income. Although certain changes in assets and liabilities, such as unrealized gains and losses on securities
available for sale, are reported as a separate component of the equity section of the consolidated balance sheet,
such items, along with net income, are components of comprehensive income/loss.

The components of other comprehensive income/loss and related tax effects are as follows:

Years Ended june 30,
2005 2004

(Dollars in Thousands)
Unrealized holding loss on securities available forsale ................ ... . ... ..... $ () $(1,326)
Reclassification adjustment for net gain realized inincome . ........... .. ... ... ..... (110) (93)
Netunrealized 108S .. ... . e (111) (1,419)
TaX e eCt . o (38) (497)
Net-of-tax @mMOUNL . . ...ttt et e e e e e $(73) § (922)




SERVICE BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Recent accounting pronouncement

On December 16, 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment,” which is an Amendment of FASB
Statement Nos. 123 and 95. SFAS No. 123R changes, among other things, the manner in which share-based
compensation, such as stock options, will be accounted for by public companies. SFAS 123R will be effective for
public companies that file as small business issuers as of the beginning of the annual reporting period that begins
after December 15, 2005. For public companies, the cost of employee services received in exchange for equity
instruments including options and similar awards generally will be measured at fair value at the grant date. The
grant date fair value will be estimated using option-pricing models adjusted for the unique characteristics of those
options and instruments, unless observable market prices for the same or similar options are available. The cost
will be recognized over the requisite service period, often the vesting period. The change in accounting will
replace existing requirements under SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” and will
eliminate the ability to account for share-based compensation transactions using APB Opinion No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” which does not require companies to expense options if the
exercise price is equal to the trading price at the date of grant. This Statement is not expected to have a material
impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

3. SECURITIES

A summary of securities follows:

June 30, 2005

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value

(Dollars in Thousands)
Securities Available for Sale

Federal agency securities .........cooviiuiiin ... $11,934 $ 39 $ (7 $11,966
Federal agency mortgage-backed securities ................... 12,637 89 93) 12,633
Other debt SECUIILIES . ..o vt i e e e 19,219 840 (244) 19,815
Total debt securities available forsale .. .................. 43,790 968 (344) 44,414
Marketable equity securities ......... ... ... oo 1,969 184 (67) 2,086
Total securities available forsale .................... ... $45,759  $1,152 $(411)  $46,500
Securities Held to Maturity
Federal agency mortgage-backed securities ................... $ 3253 $ 101 $ & $ 3,349
Other debt securities .......... ..., 902 25 — 927

Total securities held to maturity ........................ $ 4,155 § 126 $ 5 $4276
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SERVICE BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

June 30, 2004

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
(Dollars in Thousands)
Securities Available for Sale
Federal agency securities . ..o, $ 7953 $§ 35 $ (53 § 7935
Federal agency mortgage-backed securities . .................. 14,217 59 (212) 14,064
Other debt seCUrities . ............. ..ttt 22,748 1,074 (57) 23,765
Total debt securities available forsale .. .................. 44918 1,168 (322) 45,764
Marketable equity securities . .............. ... 1,409 34 (26) 1,417
Total securities available forsale ....................... $46,327  $1,202 $(348) $47,181
Securities Held to Maturity
Federal agency mortgage-backed securities ................... $ 5355 § 186 $ (3) § 5538
Other debt securities . ...........c.. .. 3,894 147 — 4,041
Total securities held to maturity ........................ $9249 $ 333 $ 3 $ 9579

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of debt securities by contractual maturity at June 30, 2005
follows. Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because the issuer may have the right to call
or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

Securities Available Securities Held to
for Sale Maturity
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair
Cost Value Cost Value
(Dollars in Thousands)

Within 1 year . ... ... e $ 2013 $2028 §$ 496 $ 506
Over lyeartoSyears ....... it 27,196 27,303 406 421

OverSyearsto TOYEars . . ..o oottt e 485 575 — —

Over IO YeArs .. ..ot 1,459 1,875 — —_
31,153 31,781 902 927
Federal agency mortgage-backed securities .................. ... 12,637 12,633 3,253 3,349
Total debt SecUrities ... ..ot $43790 $44.414 $4,155 $4,276

At June 30, 2003, a federal agency mortgage-backed security with an amortized cost and fair value of
$167,000 and $164,000, respectively, was pledged to secure the Company’s treasury tax and loan account.

Proceeds from the sale of securities available for sale, during fiscal years 2005 and 2004 were $4.6 million
and $8.8 million, respectively. Gross gains were $211,000 and $281,000 for 2005 and 2004, respectively. Gross
losses were $101,000 and $222,000 for 2005 and 2004, respectively. There were no impairment losses for the
fiscal years ending June 30, 2005 and 2004.

During fiscal year 2004, the Bank sold a corporate bond designated as held to maturity. Bank management
had considered the bond’s assignment by the bond rating agencies to negative credit watch for possible
downgrading to junk bond status and management reviewed the financial condition and operating performance of
the issuer. As a result, management determined that there was “significant deterioration” in the credit worthiness
of the bond and subsequently sold the bond for $512,000 which resulted in a realized gain of $34,000. Under
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SERVICE BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt
and Equity Securities,” the determination of “significant deterioration™ of the credit worthiness of the held to
maturity bond and subsequent sale, does not call into question management’s intent to hold other debt securities
to maturity in the future.

The net unrealized loss of $3,000 and $5,000 related to securities transferred from available for sale to held
to maturity in prior years is included in accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax, at June 30, 2005
and 2004, respectively.

Information pertaining to securities with gross unrealized losses aggregated by investment category and
length of time that the individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, follows:

June 30, 2005
Less Than Twelve Months Over Twelve Months

Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized
Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value

(Dollars in Thousands)
Temporarily Impaired Securities Available for Sale

Federal agency securities .. ... $ 7 $2,990 $— $ —
Federal agency mortgage-backed securities ................. 2 164 91 3,861
Other debt securities . ... ..ot et 218 3,817 26 993
Total debt securities available forsale ............. .... 227 6,971 117 4,854
Marketable equity securities ................. ... 40 571 27 174
Total temporarily impaired securities available for sale . . .. $267 $7,542 $144 $5,028

Temporarily Impaired Securities Held to Maturity
Federal agency mortgage-backed securities ................. $ 2 $ 239 § 3 $ 177

June 30, 2004
Less Than Twelve Months Over Twelve Months

Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized
Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value

{(Dollars in Thousands)
Temporarily Impaired Securities Available for Sale

Federal agency securities .. ...t $ 53 $ 5,902 $— § —
Federal agency mortgage-backed securities ................. 118 6,879 94 2,775
Other debt securities . ... ... ...t 33 992 24 1,046
Total debt securities available forsale ................. 204 13,773 118 3,821
Marketable equity securities ............ ..., 26 729 — —
Total temporarily impaired securities available for sale . . .. $230 $14,502 $118 $3,821

Temporarily Impaired Securities Held to Maturity
Federal agency mortgage-backed securities ................. $ 1 $ 393 $ 2 $ 294

The Company evaluates securities for other-than-temporary impairment on a quarterly basis, and more
frequently when economic or market conditions warrant such evaluation. Consideration is given to: (i) the length
of time and extent to which fair value has been less than cost, (ii) the financial condition, and near-term prospects
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of the issuer, (iii) industry developments of the issuer and general economic conditions, (iv) the likelihood of a
recovery of the fair value of the securities in the near term, and (v) the intent and ability of the Company to retain
its investment in the issuer for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value. In
analyzing the financial condition of a debt securities issuer, the Company considers whether the securities are
issued by the federal government or its agencies, whether downgrades by bond rating agencies have occurred,
and industry analysts’ reports. In analyzing the financial condition of an equity securities issuer, the Company
considers industry analysts’ reports, financial performance and projected target prices of investment analysts
within a one-year time frame. Unrealized losses on marketable equity securities that are in excess of 50% of cost,
and that have been sustained for more than twelve months, are generally recognized by the Company as being
other than temporary and charged to carnings, unless evidence exists to support a realizable value equal to or
greater than the Company’s carrying value of the investment.

At June 30, 2005, debt securities available for sale held by the Company with unrealized losses for a period
greater than twelve months included four federal agency issued mortgage-backed securities totaling $3.9 million,
and one corporate bond totaling $993,000. The aggregate depreciation totaled 2% from the Company’s cost
basis, with the largest unrealized depreciation for a single debt security amounting to 3% from the Company’s
cost basis. The Company has determined that these unrealized losses relate principally to the increase in market
interest rates over the past year and the effect on the market prices for debt securities. Debt securities available
for sale held by the Company with unrealized losses for a period less than twelve months included three federal
agency securities totaling $3.0 million, a $164,000 federal agency issued mortgage-backed security and four
corporate bonds issued by U.S. automotive manufacturing companies totaling $3.8 million. The aggregate
depreciation totaled 3% from the Company’s cost basis, with the largest unrealized depreciation for a single debt
security amounting to 8% from the Company’s cost basis. The Company has determined that these unrealized
losses relate principally to the increase in market interest rates over the past year and the effect on the market
prices for debt securities. In addition, the unrealized depreciation on the automotive corporate bonds has been
affected by weaker operating results in the automotive industry. The Company has reviewed the financial
condition of these issuers and has determined that none of the declines in the corporate bonds are other than
temporary. Also, since the Company has the ability to hold all of its debt securities until maturity, or for the
foreseeable future if classified as available for sale, no declines are deemed to be other than temporary.

At June 30, 2005, four marketable equity securities totaling $174,000 had unrealized losses for a period
greater than twelve months. The aggregate depreciation from the Company’s cost basis for these equity securities
totaled $27,000, or 13%, with the largest unrealized depreciation for a single equity security amounting to 20%
from the Company’s cost basis. These equity securities investments are primarily large U.S. corporations that are
in industries that can experience large fluctuations in market prices for their stocks. The Company has reviewed
the financial condition of these corporations and has determined that none of the declines were deemed to be
other than temporary. There were ten equity securities totaling $571,000 that had unrealized deprecation less than
twelve months. The aggregate depreciation from the Company’s cost basis for these equity securities totaled
$40,000, or 7%, with the largest unrealized depreciation for a single equity security amounting to 15% from the
Company’s cost basis. The Company has determined that none of the declines were deemed to be other than
temporary.
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4. LOANS

A summary of the balances of loans follows:

June 30,
2005 2004
(Dollars in Thousands)

Real estate loans:

One-to four-family residential . . ........ ... ... .. ... i $143,045 $130,278
Residential CONSITUCHOI . .. oottt ettt et e e e e e e e e e e e 4,029 1,453
Commercial and multi-family ....... ... .. . . . . . . e 68,182 53,051
Commercial CONSITUCHION . ..ottt e e e e e e 12,249 10,141
Total real estate 10a1IS . ... .. ... ... i e 227,505 194,923
Commercial I0ans . . ... .. 25,631 20,968
Consumer loans:

Home eqUity ... ...t e 14,786 12,505
Second MOTIZAZES . . .ottt et e e e e e 7,020 6,847
Passbook secured . . ... ... . 363 372

O heT e e 814 795
Total conSUMET 1OANS . ... ..ttt e e e e 22,983 20,519

Total grossloans ............ ... 276,119 236,410

Net deferred loan costs and premiums .. ........etiin e 985 1,059
Allowance for 10an 108Ses .. ... .ottt e (2,506) (2,133)
Total 1oans, NEt . i vt $274,598 $235,336

An analysis of the allowance for loan losses follows:

Years Ended June 30,
2005 2004

(Dollars in Thousands)
Balance at beginning of YEar . ... ... .o i e $2,133 $1,745
Provision for loan 10Sses . ... ... i e 427 429
RECOVEIIES . o i e 14 66
Charge-0ffs ... o (68) 107)
Balance atend of year .. ... ... .. e $2,506 $2,133

Impaired Ioans at June 30, 2005 amounted to $90,000, none of which required a corresponding valuation
allowance. There were no impaired loans at June 30, 2004. Non-accrual loans at June 30, 2005 amounted to
$90,000, while there were none at June 30, 2004.

For the years ended June 30, 2005 and 2004, the average recorded investment in impaired loans amounted to
$28,000 and $132,000, respectively. Interest income recognized on impaired loans amounted to $20,000 for the
year ending June 30, 2004, substantially all on a cash basis, while there was no interest income recognized on
impaired loans for the year ending June 30, 2005.

Loans serviced for others are not included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The unpaid
principal balance of residential loans serviced for others was $10.6 million and $7.9 million at June 30, 2005 and
2004, respectively.
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The balance of capitalized loan servicing rights included in other assets was $98.000 and $68,000 at June
30, 2005 and 2004, respectively. During the year ended June 30, 2005, $52,000 of mortgage serving rights were
capitalized and $22,000 was amortized. During the year ended June 30, 2004, $84,000 of mortgage serving rights
were capitalized and $16,000 was amortized. There were no valuation allowances outstanding or activity during
the years ending June 30, 2005 and 2004. The estimated fair value of capitalized servicing rights at June 30, 2005
and 2004 was $98,000 and $83,000, respectively.

5.  BANKING PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

A summary of the cost and accumulated depreciation and amortization of banking premises and equipment
follows:

June 30, Estimated
2005 2004 Useful Lives
{Dollars in Thousands)
Banking premises:
Land .. ... $1,582 $1,582
Building and leasehold improvements ............................ 3,741 3310  2-40 years
Equipmentand furniture ........ ... ... e 3,026 2,897  3-10 years
8,349 7,789
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization ................ .. ...... (4,555) (4,157

'$3,794  $3,632

Depreciation and amortization expense for the years ended June 30, 2005 and 2004 amounted to $418,000
and $512,000, respectively.

6. DEPOSITS

A summary of deposit balances by type follows:

June 30,
2005 2004

(Dollars in Thousands)

Demand . . ... .. $ 39,547 $ 35,920
NOW 35,222 32,279
Money market deposits . .. ... e 33,478 34,177
Regular and other savings ... ... i i 44,083 46,271
Total non-certificate acCoOuNtS . .. ... . . i 152,330 148,647
Term certificates of $100,000 or greater . ... ... ... i 31,871 28,405
Term certificates less than $100,000 . ... ... o i e 70,604 62,096
Total certificate aCCOUNLS . . . vttt e e e e e e e e s 102,475 90,501
Total dePositS . ..ot $254,805 $239,148
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A summary of certificate accounts by maturity follows:

June 30, 2005

June 30, 2004

Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Amount Rate Amount Rate
(Dollars in Thousands)
Within Tyear . ... o e e $ 79,137 2.72% $70,474 2.28%
Over 1 yearto 3 ¥ears .. ..o ouvi ittt 17,416  3.18 15,884 248
Over 3 years to S YEaIS . ..o vttt ettt 5922 337 4,143 358
M 2.84% M 2.37%
7. BORROWINGS
A summary of Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”) fixed-rate advances, by maturity, follows:
June 30, 2005 June 30, 2004
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Amount Rate Amount Rate
(Dollars in Thousands)
Within Lyear . .. ... e $ 9,000 247% $ 5,000 3.72%
Overlyearto3 years .. ... ... . i 20,000 4,31 17,000 3.20
Over3yearStO S YEars . .. .o v ettt e 20,775 4.60 8,000 5.19
OverSyearstol0years ....... ... it 14,000  5.09 19,500  5.33
Over 10years to 20 years ..ot iiie e 782  6.48 799 647
$64,557 434% $50,299 4.44%

A summary of FHLB advances by the earlier of the maturity date or the date callable by the FHLB follows:

June 30, 2005 June 30, 2004
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Amount Rate Amount Rate
(Dollars in Thousands)
Within Lyear . ... e $35,500  4.78% $32,500 5.23%
Over 1 yearto 3 years « ... vovvne it it 13,000  3.38 13,000 245
Over3 yearto S Years .. ..ottt e 13,275 3.99 2,000 384
OverSyearto 10 years .. ....ooiiin it 2,000 442 2,000 442
Over 10 years to 20 Years .. ....vvveu v 782 648 799 647
$64,557  4.34% $50,299  4.44%

At June 30, 2005, the Bank had the borrowing capacity with the FHLB to increase the amount of
outstanding advances by $42.4 million to $107.0 million. At June 30, 2004, the Bank had borrowing capacity
with the FHLB to increase the amount of outstanding advances by $46.9 million to $97.2 million. The Bank also
has an available line of credit with the FHLB at an interest rate that adjusts daily. Borrowings under the line were
limited to $4.0 million at June 30, 2005 and 2004. All borrowings from the FHLB are secured by a blanket lien

primarily on real estate loans in accordance with the FHLB agreement.
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8. SUBORDINATED DEBT

On March 16, 2004, Service Capital Trust I (“Trust I’), a newly formed trust sponsored by the Company,
participated in a pooled offering of trust preferred securities. In connection with this offering, Trust I issued $3.0
million of trust preferred securities and reinvested the proceeds in a 30-year $3.0 million junior subordinated
debenture issued by the Company. Interest is calculated on the subordinated debenture and trust preferred
securities at a rate equal to the three-month London Interbank Offering Rate plus 285 basis points. The junior
subordinated debenture represents the sole asset of Trust I. The Company has guaranteed, on a subordinated
basis, distributions and other payments due on the trust preferred securities (the “Guarantee”). The Guarantee,
when taken together with the Company’s obligations under (i) the junior subordinated debentures; (ii) the
indenture pursuant to which the junior subordinated debentures was issued; and (iii) the Amended and Restated
Declaration of Trust governing Trust I, constitutes a full and unconditional guarantee of Trust I's obligations
under the trust preferred securities.

Under regulatory capital guidelines, trust preferred securities, within certain limitations, qualify as
regulatory capital. The Company’s regulatory capital as of June 30, 2005 and 2004 includes the $3.0 million in
trust preferred securities. Trust I, consistent with the Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No.
46, “Variable Interest Entities”, is not consolidated in the consolidated financial statements of the Company.
Therefore, the Company presents in its consolidated financial statements junior subordinated debt as a liability
and its investment in Trust I as a component of other assets.

9. INCOME TAXES
Allocation of federal and state income taxes between current and deferred portions is follows:

Years Ended June 30,
2005 2004
(Dollars in Thousands)

Current tax provision:

Federal .. ... ... $1,127 % 959
State ......... e 143 43
Total CUITENL . . . . e e e 1,270 1,002
Deferred tax benefit:
Federal .. ... (145) (109)
SALE . o (49) (G3))
“Totaldeferred . ... (194) (150)
Total tax Provision ... ... e $1,076 $ 852

The reasons for the differences between the effective tax rate and the statutory federal income tax rate are
summarized as follows:

Years Ended June 30,
2005 2004
STALULOTY TALE . . . o oottt et e et e e e 34.0% 34.0%
Increase (decrease) resulting from:
State taxes, net of federal tax benefit ....... ... . . ..., 1.9 —
Cash surrender value of life insurance ........ ... ... .. . i (1.7 2.2)
Dividends received deduction . ... ... .. ... . 04) (0.3)
OtNET . o 0.1) 0.1
Effective taX FA1E . ...\t v et et e e 33.7%  31.6%
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The components of the net deferred tax asset are as follows:

June 30,
2005 2004
(Dollars in Thousands)

Deferred tax asset:
Federal ... ... $1,143  $1,012
R 717 R PR 394 349

1,537 1,361
Deferred tax liability:

Federal ... e (577) (628)
SEAIE o o e vt (124) (129
(701) (757)

Netdeferred tax assel . . . oo vttt e et e e e e e $ 836 $ 604

The tax effects of each item that give rise to deferred taxes are as follows:

June 30,
2005 2004
(Dollars in Thousands)
Allowance for 10an 108SeS . .. .ttt e $1,025 $ 872
Net unrealized gain 0N SECUTILIES . .. .. ..ottt e e e e (258) (296)
Employee benefit plans . ........... . 247 205
Net deferred 10an COSES . . ..ot i i e e e (403) (433)
Depreciation and amortization . ... ...ttt e e 225 225
Other . o = 3
Net deferred taX @S58 . .« oot v ettt e e e $ 836 604
A summary of the change in the net deferred tax balance is as follows:
Years Ended June 30,
2005 2004
(Dollars in Thousands)
Net deferred tax asset (liability) balance at beginning of year ...................... $604 $43)
Deferred tax benefit . .. ... ... 194 150
Change in deferred tax effect of net unrealized gain/loss on securities ............... 38 497
Net deferred tax asset balance atendofyear ......... ... ... .. ... ..., $836 $604

There was no valuation reserve required on deferred tax assets for the years ended June 30, 2005 and 2004.

The federal income tax reserve for loan losses at the Bank’s base year is $1.1 million. If any portion of the
reserve is used for purposes other than to absorb loan losses, approximately 150% of the amount actually used,
limited to the amount of the reserve, would be subject to taxation in the fiscal year in which used. As the Bank
intends to use the reserve solely to absorb loan losses, a deferred tax Lability of $468,000 has not been provided.
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16. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Minimum regulatory capital requirements

The Company (on a consolidated basis) and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements
administered by the federal banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can result in certain
mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct
material adverse effect on the Company’s and the Bank’s financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines
and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Company and the Bank must meet specific capital
guidelines that involve quantitative measures of their assets, liabilities and certain off-balance-sheet items as
calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The Bank’s capital amounts and classification are also subject
to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and other factors., Prompt
corrective action provisions are not applicable to the Company.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to maintain
minimum amounts and ratios of total and Tier I capital (as defined) to risk-weighted assets (as defined) and of
Tier I capital (as defined) to average assets (as defined). Management believes that the Company and the Bank
meet all capital adequacy requirements to which they are subject.

As of June 30, 20035, the most recent notification from the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
categorized the Bank as “well capitalized” under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be
categorized as well capitalized, the Bank must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier I risk-based and Tier 1
leverage ratios as set forth in the following table. There are no conditions or events since that notification that
management believes have changed the Bank’s category. The Company’s and the Bank’s actual capital amounts
and ratios are also presented in the table.

Minimum
To Be Well
Minimum Capitalized Under
Capital Prompt Corrective
Actual Requirement Action Provisions

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

(Dollars in Thousands)

June 30, 2005:
Total capital to risk weighted assets:
Consolidated .......... ... ... .. ... .. ... $31,521 12.09% $20,864 8.00% — —
Bank ... .. 27,766 10.66 20,841 8.00 $26,052 10.00%
Tier I capital to risk weighted assets:
Consolidated .. .......... ... .o iiiiiiiiin, 29,015 11.13 10,432 4.00 — —
Bank ... ... 25260 9.70 10421 4.00 15631 6.00
Tier 1 capital to average assets:
Consolidated .. ........ ... ... ... .. .. 29,015 844 13,754 4.00 — —
Bank ... . 25260  7.35 13,743 400 17,179 5.00
June 30, 2004:
Total capital to risk weighted assets:
Consolidated ............ ... . ... . .. . ..., $29.487 12.96% $18,202 8.00% — —
Bank .. ... 25,011 11.01 18,202 8.00 $22,724 10.00%
Tier I capital to risk weighted assets: '
Consolidated .. ........ ... ... .. .. . i 27,354 12.02 9,101 4.00 — —
Bank ... ... ... 22,878 10.07 9,101 4.00 13,634 6.00
Tier I capital to average assets:
Consolidated .......... ... . . .. .. 27,354 8.74 12,514 4.00 — —
Bank ... .. 22878 732 12,504 400 15631 5.00
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Ligquidation account

At the time of the Offering, the Company established a liquidation account in the amount of $4.6 million. In
accordance with Massachusetts statute, the liquidation account will be maintained for the benefit of eligible
account holders who continue to maintain their accounts in the Bank after the Offering. The liquidation account
will be reduced annually to the extent that eligible account holders have reduced their qualifying deposits.
Subsequent increases will not restore an eligible account holder’s interest in the liquidation account. In the event
of a complete liquidation, each eligible account holder will be entitled to receive a distribution in an amount
equal to their current adjusted liquidation account balance, to the extent that funds are available.

Other capital restrictions

Federal and state banking regulations place certain restrictions on dividends paid and loans or advances
made by the Bank to the Company. The total amount of dividends which may be paid at any date is generally
limited to the retained earnings of the Bank, and loans or advances are limited to 10% of the Bank’s capital stock
and surplus on a secured basis. In addition, dividends paid by the Bank to the Company would be prohibited if
the effect thereof would cause the Bank’s capital to be reduced below applicable minimum capital requirements.
Accordingly, at June 30, 2005, $20.8 million of the Company’s equity in the Bank was restricted and funds
available for loans or advances amounted to $2.8 million.

Stock Repurchase Plan

In February 2003, the Board of Directors of the Company approved a Stock Repurchase Plan under which
the Company is authorized to acquire up to 4% of the outstanding common stock, or up to approximately 65,925
shares of the issued and outstanding shares of its common stock in the open market or in private transactions.
Under the Stock Repurchase Plan, shares may be repurchased from time to time and in such amounts as market
conditions warrant, and subject to regulatory considerations. As of June 30, 2005, 41,336 shares had been
repurchased under the plan at an average price of $24.04.

11. RETIREMENT BENEFIT AND INCENTIVE PLANS
401(k) Plan

The Bank provides a savings plan which qualifies under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code and
provides for voluntary contributions by participating employees equal to the maximum amount allowed by
federal regulations. The Bank makes matching contributions equal to 100% of each employee’s voluntary
contribution, up to 4% of the employee’s compensation. Total expense under the plan for each of the years ended
June 30, 2005 and 2004 amounted to $101,000.

Supplemental Retirement Agreements

The Bank has supplemental retirement agreements with directors of the Bank under the Directors
Supplemental Retirement Plan, which provide for compensation payments upon retirement, subject to certain
limitations as set forth in the agreements. Retirement benefits are based on the performance of related life
insurance policies purchased by the Bank. The present value of the estimated retirement benefits is being accrued
over the anticipated service periods. Compensation expense applicable to these agreements amounted to $40,000
and $264,000 for the years ended June 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

The Bank has a supplemental retirement agreement with its President, which provides supplemental
compensation payments upon retirement, subject to certain limitations as set forth in the agreement. The present
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value of future benefits is being accrued over the term of employment. Compensation expense applicable to the
agreement amounted to $67,000 and $57,000 for the years ended June 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Employee Incentive Plan

The Bank has an Employee Incentive Plan (“EIP Plan”) whereby employees who meet certain eligibility
requirements receive a bonus proportionate to their respective salary. The total available bonus pool is based on
the Bank’s fiscal performance and the structure of the EIP Plan is reviewed annually by the Board of Directors.
The EIP Plan compensation expense for the years ended June 30, 2005 and 2004 was $323,000 and $307,000,
respectively.

12. STOCK COMPENSATION PLANS AND ESOP
Stock Option Plan

On September 1, 1999, the Board of Directors approved the 1999 Stock Option Plan (the “1999 Plan™),
which was approved by stockholders in 1999. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004, the Company’s Board
of Directors adopted the Amended and Restated 1999 Stock Option Plan (the “Amended Plan™), which was
approved by the Company’s stockholders at the 2003 annual meeting of stockholders and approved by the
Massachusetts Commissioner of Banks. The Amended Plan authorizes the issuance of up to 140,000 shares of
common stock of the Company. The Amended Plan permits the Company to grant awards in the form of
incentive stock options, non-qualified stock options, deferred stock, restricted stock, unrestricted stock,
performance share awards and stock appreciation rights. The exercise price of each option equals the market
price of the Company’s stock on the date of grant and an option’s maximum term is ten years. Shares awarded
vest in five equal annual installments and become fully vested upon the recipient’s retirement. There were no
options granted in during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005. At June 30, 2005, 45,797 shares are reserved for
issuance upon the exercise of options currently outstanding, and 61,706 shares remain available under the
Amended Plan.

The Amended Plan also permits the inclusion of limited rights, reload options and dividend equivalent
rights.

Limited rights would permit the optionee to surrender an option, or portion thereof, for cancellation and to
receive cash or common stock equal to the excess, if any, of the then fair market value of the common stock
subject to such option or portion thereof over the option exercise price. Limited rights can only be exercised upon
a change in control (as defined in the Amended Plan) and, if the related options are exercised or terminated, the
related rights are terminated. There were no options granted or forfeited during the fiscal years ended June 30,
2005 or 2004 with limited rights. Limited rights with respect to 5,000 and 10,397 options were terminated upon
exercise of the related options during fiscal years 2005 and 2004, respectively. Limited rights with respect to
22,897 and 27,897 options were outstanding at June 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Reload options would permit the exchange of shares of stock in satisfaction of all or a portion of the
exercise price of the original option grant. The exercise price of the stock subject to the reload option will be ..
determined at the time the original option is exercised. Dividend equivalent rights would permit the optionee to
receive a cash benefit per share underlying the related vested stock options outstanding in the amount of any
extraordinary dividend (as defined in the Amended Plan) declared by the Company. Reload options and dividend
equivalent rights were granted with respect to all options granted during fiscal 2004. There were no options
granted during fiscal year 2005.
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The fair value of each new option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-
pricing model. For the year ended June 30, 2005 there were no new options granted. During the year ended June
30, 2004, the fair value of each new option grant was estimated utilizing the weighted-average assumptions of
zero as the dividend yield, 10 years as the expected life, 35% as the expected volatility and a risk-free interest
rate of 3.8%.

Stock option activity under the plan for the years ended June 30, 2005 and 2004 follows:

2005 2004
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Options  Exercise Price  Options  Exercise Price
Outstanding at beginning of year ....................... 51,197 $11.68 70,294 $10.47
Granted ... ... ... e — 1,000 30.85
Forfeited .. ... ... .. . . (400) 15.05 (2,600) 12.15
Exercised . ... .. (5,000) 7.50 (17,497) 7.85
Outstanding atend of year ............ ... ... . ... .... 45,797 12.11 51,197 11.68
Exercisable atendofyear . .............. ... ... ... ..., 34,374 $10.99 28,495 $10.30
Weighted average fair value of options granted during the
VOAL v et e e § — $ 1640

|

Information pertaining to options outstanding and exercisable at June 30, 2005 is as follows:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Weighted
Average Weighted Average Weighted
Remaining  Average Remaining  Average
Number Contractual  Exercise Number Contractual  Exercise
Range of Exercise Prices Outstanding Life Price Exercisable Life Price
$7.50-89.75 ... 19,290 SS5years $ 7.67 18,990 S4years $ 7.64
$13.70-$15.05 . ... 25,507 8.2 14.72 14,984 8.2 14.71
$30.85 ... 1,000 9.7 30.85 400 9.7 30.85
Outstanding atend of year ........... 45,797 7. 1years $12.11 34,374 6.7 years  $10.99

Recognition and Retention Plan

On September 1, 1999, the Board of Directors approved the 1999 Recognition and Retention Plan (the
“RRP”) for key employees and directors of the Company and the Bank and reserved 40,247 shares of common
stock of the Company for issuance. There were no awards under the RRP during the years ended June 30, 2005
or 2004. There were 900 shares forfeited during the year ended June 30, 2004, while none were forfeited during
the year ended June 30, 2005. Shares awarded vest in five equal annual installments and become fully vested
upon the recipient’s retirement. At June 30, 2005 and 2004, 34,285 and 26,942 shares, respectively, were vested.
Compensation expense relating to the RRP amounted to $57,000 and $85,000 for the years ended June 30, 2005
and 2004, respectively. At June 30, 2005, 39,347 shares of common stock of the Company, originaily reserved
for issuance under the RRP, had been granted and 900 shares remain available for issuance under the RRP.
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Employee Stock Ownership Plan

Effective November 1, 1998, in connection with the Offering, the Bank established an Employee Stock
Ownership Plan (the “ESOP”) for the benefit of each employee who has reached the age of 21 and has completed
at least 1,000 hours of service in the previous twelve-month period. The ESOP is funded by the Bank’s
contributions of cash (which generally will be invested in common stock) or common stock. Benefits may be
paid in shares of common stock or in cash, subject to the employees’ right to demand shares.

The ESOP has a loan agreement with the Company whereby $644,000 was borrowed for the purpose of
purchasing shares of the Company’s common stock. The loan provides for ten annual principal payments of
$64,000 commencing on the last business day of September 1999. The Bank made a $100,000 principal pre-
payment on October 31, 1998.

The Bank has committed to make contributions to the ESOP sufficient to support the debt service of the
loan. The loan is secured by the shares purchased which are held in a suspense account for allocation among the
members as the loans are paid. Total compensation expense applicable to the ESOP amounted to $173,000 and
$171,000 for the years ended June 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Shares held by the ESOP include the following:

June 30,
2005 2004
Adlocated . ... 36,854 33,410
Committed to be allocated .. ... ... 4,293 4,293
Unallocated ... ... e 11,466 17,905

52,613 55,608

Any cash dividends received on allocated shares would be allocated to members and cash dividends
received on shares held in suspense would be applied to repay the outstanding debt of the ESOP. The fair value
of unearned ESOP shares at June 30, 2005 and 2004 is $292,000 and $483,000, respectively.

13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
General

In the ordinary course of business, various legal claims arise from time to time. In the opinion of
management, none of these claims pending as of June 30, 2005 will have a material effect on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.

Employment agreement

The Company entered into a three-year employment agreement with its President effective September 2001.
The agreement extends automatically for the periods of one year commencing at the second anniversary of the
effective date and on each subsequent anniversary thereafter, unless the Company or the President, subject to
certain conditions, provides notice of the election to not extend the term. The agreement provides for a specific
salary and benefits continuation in the event the executive is terminated without cause. However, such |
employment may be terminated for cause, as defined, without incurring any continuing obligations. The
agreement also provides for a lump sum severance payment, subject to certain conditions, following a “change in
control” as defined in the agreement.
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Loan commitments

The Bank is a party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to
meet the financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit,
which involve elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amount recognized in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets. The Bank’s exposure to credit loss is represented by the contractual amount of the
instruments. The Bank uses the same credit policies in making commitments as it does for on-balance-sheet
instruments.

Financial instruments whose contract amount represents credit risk consist of:

June 30,
2005 2004
(Dollars in Thousands)
Commitments to grant 1oans . . . ... .. e $15,850 $11,754
Unadvanced funds on home equity lines-of-credit . . ......... ... ... ... oo, 30,818 19,180
Unadvanced funds on commercial lines-of-credit .. ... ... ... ... . ... ... ... ... .... 10,082 9,304
Unadvanced funds on personal lines-of-credit .. ............ ... ... .. ... L. 922 906
Unadvanced funds on construction 10ans ... ... ...t i s 11,912 8,483

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any
condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination
clauses and may require payment of a fee. The commitments for lines-of-credit may expire without being drawn
upon, therefore, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The Bank
evaluates each customer’s credit worthiness on a case-by-case basis. Commitments to grant loans and lines-of-
credit are secured by real estate or other collateral, if deemed necessary.

Operating lease commitments

Pursuant to the terms of noncancelable lease agreements in effect at June 30, 2005 pertaining to banking
premises and equipment, future minimum rent commitments are as follows:

Amount
(Dollars in Thousands)
Year Ending June 30,
2006 e e e e $ 511
2007 502
2008 L e e 453
2000 208
2000 . 37
Thereafter . .. ... . i e 22

These leases contain options to extend for periods from five to ten years. The cost of such rentals is not
included above. Total rent expense for the years ended June 30, 2005 and 2004 amounted to $570,000 and
$542,000, respectively.




SERVICE BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

14. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 107, “Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial
Instruments™ requires disclosure of estimated fair values of all financial instruments where it is practicable to
estimate such values. In cases where quoted market prices are not available, fair values are based on estimates
using present value or other valuation techniques. Those techniques are significantly affected by the assumptions
used, including the discount rate and estimates of future cash flows. Accordingly, the derived fair value estimates
cannot be substantiated by comparison to independent markets and, in many cases, could not be realized in
immediate settlement of the instrument. Statement No. 107 excludes certain financial instruments and all
nonfinancial instruments from its disclosure requirements. Accordingly, the aggregate fair value amounts
presented do not represent the underlying value of the Company.

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Company in estimating fair value disclosures for
financial instruments:

Cash and cash equivalents: The carrying amounts of cash and short-term investments approximate
fair values.

Securities:  Fair values for securities are based on quoted market prices.

FHLB stock: The carrying value of FHLB stock is deemed to approximate fair value, based on the
redemption provisions of the FHLB.

Loans: For variable-rate loans that reprice frequently and with no significant change in credit risk,
fair values are based on carrying values. Fair values for other loans are estimated using discounted cash flow
analyses, using interest rates currently being offered for loans with similar terms and adjusted for credit risk.
Fair values for non-performing loans are estimated using discounted cash flow analyses or underlying
collateral values, where applicable.

Deposits:  The fair values disclosed for non-certificate accounts are, by definition, equal to the
amount payable on demand at the reporting date (i.e., their carrying amounts). Fair values for fixed-rate
certificates of deposit are estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation that applies interest rates
currently being offered on certificates to a schedule of aggregated expected monthly maturities on time
deposits.

FHLB advances: The fair values for the FHLB advances are estimated using discounted cash flow
analyses based on rates currently in effect for similar types of borrowing arrangements.

Subordinated debt:  The subordinated debt is a variable rate debenture that reprices quarterly. The fair
value is based on carrying value less unamortized borrowing costs.

Accrued interest:  The carrying amounts of accrued interest approximate fair value.

Off-balance-sheet instruments:  Fair values for off-balance-sheet lending commitments are based on
fees currently charged to enter into similar agreements, taking into account the remaining terms of the
agreements and the counterparties’ credit standing and are not material.
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The estimated fair values and related carrying amounts of the Company’s financial instruments are as
follows:

June 30,
2005 2004

Carrying Carrying
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value

(Dollars in Thousands)
Financial assets:

Cash and cashequivalents . .............. ... .. c.c..... $ 9761 $ 9,761 $ 13,202 $ 13,202
Securities available forsale . ........ ... .. ... ... ... . ... 46,500 46,500 47,181 47,181
Securities held to maturity ................ ... ... .. .. 4,155 4,276 9,249 9,579
FHLB StOCK . .o e e 3,908 3,908 2,936 2,936
LOanS, It o o vt e e 274,598 276,599 235,336 234,798
Accrued interest receivable ... ... ... ... L. 1,465 1,465 1,332 1,332
Financial liabilities:
Deposits . .o 254,805 254,327 239,148 239,318
Federal Home Loan Bank advances .................... 64,557 65,610 50,299 51,232
Subordinated debt ........ ... .. ... . ... 3,093 3,036 3,003 3,033

15. CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PARENT COMPANY

Condensed financial information pertaining only to the Company is as follows:

BALANCE SHEETS
June 30,
2005 2004

(Dollars in Thousands)

Interest-bearing depositin Strata Bank .. ...... ... ... . $ 3,116 $ 3,896
Investment in common stock of StrataBank . ....... ... . ... . . . . 25,760 23,446
Investment in common stock of Service Capital TrustI........ ... ... . ... ... . ... 93 93
Loan receivable from Strata Bank ESOP ... .. O 158 222
e BESEES & o vt i vttt et e e e 528 394
TOtAL ASSBIS vt v ettt e e e $29,655 $28,051
Subordinated debt . .. ... e $ 3,093 $ 3,093
Other HHabilitIes .o oot e e e e e e 47 36
Total Liabilities ................ O 3,140 3,129
Stockholders” eqUIty ... ..ot e 26,515 24,922

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity . ........ ... .. .. oo, $29,655 $28,051
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Years End;ed June 30,
2005 2004
(Dollars in Thousands)
Interest income from Strata Bank ... ..., ... . .. $ 75 $ 58
OPerating eXpenses .. .. ...ttt ettt e e (56) (84)
Interest on subordinated debt . ... ... ... L (165) 37
LLoss before INCOME taXeS . ..o\ v et e e e e e e (146) (63)
Income tax benefit .. ... ... ©49) 21
97 (42)
Equity tn undistributed net income of Strata Bank . ... ... 2,214 1,889
NEEIICOME . oot et et e e e e e e e e $2.117 $1,847
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended June 30,
2005 2004

(Dollars in Thousands)
Cash flows from operating activities:

NetinCOME . . oot $2,117 $1,847
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash (used) provided by operating
activities:
Change in other assets and liabilities . ........... .. ... ... ... .. ........ (68) - —
Amortization of RRPstock ... .. ... .. 57 85
Equity in undistributed net income of StrataBank .............. ... ... .. (2,214) (1,889)
Net cash (used) provided by operating activities ... ................... (108) 43
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital contribution to Strata Bank . ... .. ... ... ... — (1,000)
Investment in Service Capital Trust T .. ... ... ... . . . . — 93)
Payment received on ESOP loan .......... ... ... ... . . 64 64
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities .......................... 64 (1,029)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Stock Option eXercises . ... ... 37 137
Proceeds from subordinated debt .. ... .. .. — 3,033
Purchase of treasury stock . ... .. .. . e (773) (60)
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities :. ...t (736) 3,110
Net change in cash and cash equivalents . ... ... . .. .. .. ... ... .. .. .. ......... (780) 2,124
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ........ ... ... ... ... ... .. ... . ... 3,896 1,772
Cash and cash equivalentsatend of year . . ........ ... ... .. ... i $3116 $ 3,89
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16. QUARTERLY DATA (UNAUDITED)

Years Ended June 30,
2005 2004

Fourth Third Second First Fourth Third Second First
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Share Amounts)

Interest and dividend income . . . . ... $4,536 $4,392 $4,240 $4,026 $3,947 $3975 $3,982 $3,704
Interestexpense ................. 1,632 1,510 1,450 1,332 1,307 1,258 1,223 1,184
Net interest income .............. 2904 2882 2,790 2,694 2,640 2,717 2759 2,520
Provision for loan losses .......... 127 89 109 102 76 56 157 140
Net interest income, after provision

forloanlosses ................ 2,777 2,793 2681 2592 2564 2661 2602 2380
Net gain (loss) on securities sales . .. 22 37 12 39 37 (50) 67 39
Net gain on loan sales .. ... e 43 — 32 — — 226 — —
Fee and otherincome . ............ 308 365 387 392 382 369 362 355
Non-interest expense ............. 2,322 2385 2321 2,349 2,437 2443 2211 27205
Income before income taxes ....... 918 810 791 674 546 763 820 569
Provision for income taxes ........ 336 270 255 215 173 234 262 182
Netincome . .................... $ 582 % 540 $ 536 $ 459 $ 373 $ 529 $ 558 $ 387
Earnings per share (basic) ......... $036 $033 $033 $028 $023 $033 §035 § 024
Earnings per share (diluted) ........ $035 $032 $032 3028 $022 $032 5034 5024
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ITEM 8. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

None.

ITEM 8A. Controls and Procedures.
(a) Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures.

As required by Rule 13a-15 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange
Act”), the Company’s management conducted an evaluation with the participation of the Company’s Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, regarding the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure
controls and procedures, as of the end of the last fiscal quarter. Based upon that evaluation, the Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that they believe the Company’s disclosure
controls and procedures were effective as of June 30, 2005 to ensure that information required to be
disclosed by the Company in the reports it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s
rules and forms. We intend to continue to review and document our disclosure controls and procedures,
including our internal controls and procedures for financial reporting, and we may from time to time make
changes to the disclosure controls and procedures to enhance their effectiveness and to ensure that our
systerns evolve with our business. In designing and evaloating the Company’s disclosure controls and
procedures, the Company and its management recognize that any controls and procedures, no matter how
well designed and operated, can provide only a reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control
objectives, and management necessarily was required to apply its judgment in evaluating and implementing
possible controls and procedures.

(b) Change in internal controls.

There were no changes in the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting identified in
connection with the Company’s evaluation of its disclosure controls and procedures that occurred during the
Company’s last fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 8B. Other Information.

None.

PART III
ITEM 9. Directors, Executive Officers, Promoters and Control Persons; Compliance with Section 16(a)
of the Exchange Act.

The information called for by this Item 9 will be contained in our Proxy Statement for our 2005 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders (the “2005 Proxy Statement”), which we intend to file within 120 days following our
fiscal year end, and such information is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 10. Executive Compensation.

The information called for by this Item 10 will be contained in our 2005 Proxy Statement, which we intend
to file within 120 days following our fiscal year end, and such information is incorporated herein by reference.
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ITEM 11. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters.

The information called for by this Item 11 will be contained in our 2005 Proxy Statement, which we intend
to file within 120 days following our fiscal year end, and such information is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 12. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.

The information called for by this Item 12 will be contained in our 2005 Proxy Statement, which we intend
to file within 120 days following our fiscal year end, and such information is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 13. Exhibits.

3.1 Articles of Organization of Service Bancorp, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form SB-2 (SEC File No. 333-156851))

3.2 Articles of Amendment to Articles of Organization of Service Bancorp, Inc. (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 3.1(A) to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB for the quarter ended March
31, 2004)

33 Bylaws of Service Bancorp, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-QSB for the quarter ended March 31, 2004)

4.1 Form of Certificate representing the Company Common Stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4
to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form SB-2 (SEC File No. 333-156851))

10.1 Strata Bank f/k/a Summit Bank Employee Stock Ownership Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.3 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form SB-2 (SEC File No. 333-156851))

10.2 Service Bancorp, Inc. 1999 Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Appendix C to the
Company’s 2003 Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A)

10.3 Service Bancorp, Inc. 1999 Recognition and Retention Plan (incorporated by reference to Appendix B
to the Company’s 1999 Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A)

10.4 Form of Director Supplemental Retirement Agreement and accompanying Information Schedule by and
among Strata Bank f/k/a Summit Bank, Service Bancorp, Inc. and Service Bancorp, MHC and their
subsidiaries or affiliates and each of current Directors Richard Giusti, Dr. John Hasenjaeger, Thomas
R. Howie, Kenneth C. A. Issacs, Paul V. Kenney, Eugene R. Liscombe, James W. Murphy, Lawrence
E. Novick, Kelly A. Verdolino, and former Directors William J. Casey, John G. Dugan, Robert J.
Heavy and Robert Matson (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-KSB for the year ended June 30, 2003)

10.5 Employment Agreement dated as of September 19, 2001 by and among Pamela J. Montpelier, Strata
Bank, Service Bancorp, Inc. and Service Bancorp, MHC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to
the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB for the quarter ended September 30, 2001)

10.6 Supplemental Retirement Agreement dated March 18, 2003 by and among Pamela J. Montpelier, Strata
Bank, Service Bancorp, Inc., Service Bancorp, MHC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB for the quarter ended March 31, 2003)

14.1 Service Bancorp, Inc./Service Bancorp, MHC/Strata Bank Code of Ethics (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 14.1 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-KSB for the year ended June 30, 2003)

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Company
23.1 Consent of Wolf & Company, P.C.




31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934

312 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. '

322 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

ITEM 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services. i

The information called for by this Item 14 will be contained in our 2005 Proxy Statement, which we intend
to file within 120 days following our fiscal year end, and such information is incorporated herein by reference.

70




SIGNATURES

In accordance with the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, the registrant caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Date: September 20, 2005 SERVICE BANCORP, INC.

By: /s/ PAMELA J. MONTPELIER

Pamela J. Montpelier
President and Chief Executive Officer

In accordance with the Exchange Act, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

By: /s/ PAMELA J. MONTPELIER By: /s/ DANA S. PHILBROOK
Pamela J. Montpelier Dana S. Philbrook
President, Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
and Director (Principal Executive Officer} (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
Date: September 20, 2005 Date: September 20, 2005
By: /s/ MICHAEL J. SHEEHAN By: /s! RICHARD GIUST!
Michael J. Sheehan, Director Richard Giusti, Director

(Chairman of the Board)

Date: September 20, 2005 Date: September 20, 2005
By: /s/ JOHN HASENJAEGER By: /s/ THOMAS R. HOWIE
John Hasenjaeger, Director Thomas R. Howie, Director
Date: September 20, 2005 Date: September 20, 2005
By: /s/ KENNETH C.A. [SAACS By: /s/ PAUL V. KENNEY
Kenneth C.A. Isaacs, Director Paul V. Kenney, Director
Date: September 20, 2005 Date: September 20, 2005
By: /s/ EUGENE R. LISCOMBE By: /s/ KELLY A. VERDOLINO
Eugene R. Liscombe, Director Kelly A. Verdolino, Director
Date: September 20, 2005 Date: September 20, 2005
By: /s/ JAMES W. MURPHY By: /s/ LAWRENCE E. NovICK
James W. Murphy, Director Lawrence E. Novick, Director
Date: September 20, 2005 Date: September 20, 2005
By: /s! EUGENE G. STONE

Eugene G. Stone, Director

Date: September 20, 2005




STOCKHOLDER INFORMATION

ANNUAL MEETING
The Annual Meeting of Stockholders will be held at 3:00 p.m. on October 25, 2005,
at the Hawthorne Suites, 385 Upper Union Street, Franklin, M4, 02038.

STOCK LISTING
Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board Symbol: SERC

LEGAL COUNSEL

Nutter, McClennen & Fish, LLP
World Trade Center West

155 Seaport Boulevard

Boston, MA 02210

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
Wolf & Company, PC.

99 High Street

Boston, MA 02110

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR
Continental Stock Transfer and Trust Co.
2 Broadway

New York, NY 10004

(212) 509-4000

Contact our transfer agent directly for assistance in changing your address, elimination of
duplicate mailings, transferring stock, or replacing lost, stolen or destroyed stock certificates.

ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-KSB

Additional copies of our Annual Report on Form 10-KSB for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005,

are available upon written request to Dana S. Philbrook, Chief Financial Officer, Service Bancorp, Inc.,
81 Main Street, Medway, MA 02053.
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